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lyou've gobt a blown brake light fuse --

A. Uh-hub.
Q. -- and yeour crulse control won't work,

then you don't need to turn it off.

A, If you have a blown brake lamp fuse --
Q. Yeah.
A. Okay. =-- then speed control won't wark,

thac's correct, But that'a bhecause the speed
cantral_is wired to the brake lamp. If you were
going te wire it to scomething else that you could
coentrol with tha ignitlun gawitch, then when the

brake lamp fuse would klow, speed contrcl would

[continue to work.

g. That's assuming 1f it was wired up like
that. But it's not?

A, But ié's net.

Q. That le, if Fozd would've cheosen that
circultry design?

A. I1f Ford had chosen that alternative

clrcultry design, that -- that would be what
happened,
Q- Are there any Ford vehicles today that are

designad where the epeed control deactlvation aswitch

is wired hot at all timea?

A. ¥ag,
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g. How many? All of them?
A. Yes.
Q. There is not one Ford vehicle produced

that does not have the apeed control deactivation
switch wirad hot?

A, You may be able to find a coupls of
eXxceptlons to that. But generally speaklng, they
are all wired hot.

Q. Anﬁ des they all have & 15-amp fuse that
cperates them?

A, Soma of them may have a 20-amp fuse.

2. And you may that 18 because i1t operates
brake lights and you need that kind of amperage to
operate the brake lights?

A Yes,

Q. Ford'a never considersd deing some kind of

separate fuse circuit gaing te the deactivation

awitcgh?
A. The -- Actually, no.
Q. Ia thare a problam with delng that? You

Ennw, the wire that comes out of the fuse block that
comas cff with a 15-amp fuse and goes down to the
epesd control deactivation switch, what you -- is
there anything prohibiting asomeone putting =zn

in-line fuse cn that wire to reduce the amount of

ARAA CCURT REFQRTERS 713 465-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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amp load that goes to the deactivation switgh?

A. There wouldn't be a problem with dging

that; although, the guestion would be: Why would

vyou be doing that?

Q. I don't knoew. I though that you needed a
certain number of ampes to cause a fire.

A. We don't know what that ia.

Q. And that's because Ford hasn't looked at
that issue, has it?

A.. We haven't ﬁeen akle to determine what
that would be.

| Q. Okay. Bur we do know that the way it 1s

now at 1% amps, that is sufficlent to cause fire,

right?
A. I there's a defect in the switch.
a. All right. If we'wve got fuel, which is

caused by the defsct in the awlitch?

A, Uh-huh. . _

o Thae bragke £luild, right?

A. Right.

Q I understand that. Wa'wve got to have all

three: Voltage, ampe and fuel and heat, whilch i=s
caused by the dafact. I just want to make sure that
Ford hasn't coneidered any other amp -- amper source

or lavel to that switch.

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 46£-93125
3537 Jnnea.Rnad, Na. 363, Houston, Texas 770685




44

1 ] A. Again, to say Ford hasn't considered any N
. 2 other, I -- Really, as part of the investigaticn we
3 were looking at what some of the cther alternatives
4 were. You know, one -- one that thought 1s would be
5 te have suﬁething that would eliminate the current
6 Lo that switch, such ag a relay. Eut-again, that --
7 based on the gothar vehicles, that ix not a -- that
§ ia not the cause.
g 'O.I All right. Now, you're aaying, other
14q vehicles. You’'re talking about --
11 a. Other Ford véhicles.
12 Q. Other Ford vehleles that have 15-amp fuses
13 that are wired hoee at all times and has apeed
. 14 control deactivaclon switches?
.15 - F- Yeasn.
16 Q. What is different about -- about the
17 recalled vehicles' switches? 1Ias it just the
18 manufacturing defect?
19 - A. Yanp.
20 | Q. The crimping pressure?
21 A. "hat could be gne of the things._
22 . q. Is there any;hing alee different about Lhe
23 Ford vehicles that you've looked at Ford to
24 determine what it --.The ariaentation of the switch, .
25 doas that have anything to do with it? §

AAA COURT REFPORTERS 713 465-51325
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A We congidered orientation as &
possgibility, but the crientatien of the switch is
the same in the '9%4, 85, '"56, '87 Town Car, Crawn
Vie, CGrand Marguis and those don't have a problem.
There ars éther differgnces in awltches on different
vehicles, being the plastic that was used in the
awitch body, that maybe the pressure that the switch
gwiktcheg akb; and again, you know, those aren't --
these are nct happening on other vehicles.

G. The operating temperature?

F Tha nperatiné tehperature for, you Encw.
the Town Car, Crown Vie, Grand Marguls was
sgpentially the same from 'S3 -- or 22 through '97.

Q. And dld Ford ever conduct -- I think we
had secen soms haat satudies done in a wind tunnel.
Does Ford have some kind of a setup like that?

A. There ie sowe studies, 1 underetand, that
are done like that.

Q. And did Ford ever do¢ such a study with a
thermistar -- a thermomater or a thermiaster attached
to the gpaed control deactivatlon awitch to
detarmine if the spﬁ;ifications for the switch would
be excemeded during a normal operation of a Panther
platform vehicle?

A. 1 -- I recall having meen a dogument that

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-33Z5
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| ahowad that there were some temperature studies that
werse done. ] den't beliesve there was an thermister
placed directly on the speed contrxel deactivaction
switch, but there waa one nearby.

0. So we don't know -- Ford doesn't know what
if temperature is that -- the tamperature that the
switch experiences during the normal operatlon of
the Panther platform weshicle in Soukh Texas, for
axample?

A. Nor apeclfically eaxactly, no.

Q. Ford never conducted z road Lest to see if
the temperature at the apeed control dsactivation
ewitch was -- that exceeded the specificaticons at
any time, has 1it?

A, The -- Not -- Not specifically the speed
contrel deactivation switeh. Again, there were
thermistars in tha area that di# not inmdicate that
thara would be a preblem in that direction.

Q. - But Texas Inatruments supplies ths switch

which has a limited operation temperature?

A, Uh-huh.

Q. Correct?

A. Uh-huh., Yes. Excuse me.

0. And it's important, ian't it, that when

Ford receives parts from its suppliers; that the

ARA COURT REPORTERS 7131 466-3325
8557 Joneas Road, Na. 363, Houatcn, Texas 77065

12278



lg
i1
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19.-

a0

21

22

23

24

a5

47

parts aren't subjectad to some kind of a condition
that is cucslde what the suppllier expects the part
to be exposed to. Would that be falr to say?

A, ¥aa, that would. |

e. Mow, the placee that Ford looked at
temperature, could you tell us where it is on the
vehicle that the temperature was monitoerad on the
Panther platform vehicles?

A, I don't recall exactly where it was. It
was a ﬂe;icn{ I belteve it was a few inchea away

from the epeed control -deactivation awitch,

Q. All right. Was it a shifter cable?
A. I don't remember what it was.
o. All righet. wWell, just a Eew inches away

lg-aleso an exhauat'manifold; ian't ic?

Aa. Yea, it may be.

Q. Ia there a heat shield between the exhaust
manifold and the speed cantrol deactivation switch?

A.. I don't know what the design is thare.

o. That'a important though, i1an't it, to know
about what the temperature is of that sawitch while
it's in normal cperation?

A. The place where they measured the
temperature waa, I understand, within the range that

the apeed control deactivation switch would've seen.

AAA CCURT REPCRTERS 712 466-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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1 And If that's the case, then the temperature of the

. Z epead control deactivation would be le=s than
k! whatever was measured there.
4 Q. All right. ©Did Pord -- Did Ferd ever
5 communicate with Texas Inatruments about what it
g expacted the temperature range of the switch to be

7 expoaed to on the Panther platform vehicles?
8 A. occher than what was in the ampecification,
9 I den't know that they did.
10 | Q.. Okay. S¢ whatever it says in the
11 spaecification, tﬁat's the number that Ford wanted
12 T.I. to rely upen to supply a switech that would

13 perform properly?

. 14 A, That would be the -- the initial basis,
15 yeu,
16 . 2. All right. aAnd what akbout electrical

17 conditions of the ewitch, did FPord communicate Eo

18 T.I. that the switch would be wired hof at all

19 |timas?

20 A I waen't really part of the design team at
21 .|ehe time, but I un;aratand that thay did.

22 Q: And what abou£ the current leads, the

23 15-amp?

24 A. I balieve that -- in the Highlights there

12218

- 25 was actually a test that awked to see if the current

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065




ig
11
12
13
l4
15
18
17
12
13
iQ
21
2z
23
24

25

1%

up to 30 amps could be handled by Lhe switch.

Q.. Did T.I. ever make any suggestions to
Ford -- I mean, from the very_heginning cf the
development cof this awitch to present, for any kind
=f = changé in the circuitry that operates the speed

controcl switch?

LA, I don't know that they did.
€. - It wasn't communicated teo you?
A._ Certainly wasn't communicated to me. But

I wasn't there at the time of the design.

o. Well, not juat the desmign. I mean, from
any time from the design of the switch back in the
late '808 Cto ﬁresent.

A. During the investigation they asuggested --.
they were in faver of the relay in the circuit.

' Q. And did they -- T.I. say why?

A, That that weuld be ts turn off the power
when the ignpiticn wam off.

ME. JOLLY: Pass the witneas.

MR, MANSKE: Now a goed time for a

break?
MR. Hﬁrﬂﬂ: Okay.
E X AMTI HIA TTION
e. (BY MS. WEINER)} Mr. Portaer, my name is

Monigue. We introducad nurselves before the

ARA COURT REFORTERS T13 456-3315
35%7 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065




5a

1 deposition began. I represent Du Pont in this case.
. : 2 _I'd like to discuss with you your testimony that

3 the -- that -- as I understand it, as Ford sits here

4 today, the root cause of the fire ag far as Ford is

5 concerned im 1992 Lincaln Town Cars and I'll

& restrict my guestions to that, because tha;'s what

7 was invelved in the Campbell casa. The root cause

8 of the fire im that the Kapton leaks; is that right?

9 A. That there's a leakaée path through the

10 Kaptan.

11 e. Okay. How, in Fnrd'a_opinian, did that
12 leak come about?
. 13 A. We don't have a clear understanding of
. .I 14 that,
15 - Q. Okay. Has any of Ford'as investigaticn to
16 date be=n able to narrow it down to some
17 ponaslbililicieas as to what -- whaﬁ the leak --
18 Aa. No. ‘
198 . Q. -- mechaﬁiam may be?
20 A. No.
21 Q. Okay. There's been some discusalon and

22 Mr. Jolly aaked you some gquestiona about the

23 manufacturing process that T.I. had for the pressure

24 .[control deactivation switches and that that

25 manufacturing process may have had a defeect that E

. AAA COURT REFORTERS 713 46E6-3%32C .
! : 3597 Jones Rcad, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065




10

11

12

13

14

15

lg

17

lg

139.

20
21
22
213
24

25

51

allowed the Kapton to leak. 1Is that Ford's

understanding?
A, That would be one of the possibilities.
o. Ckay. And I think, in your tastimony vyou
Eyacificaliy referenced a manufacturing defect on
the parxt of T.I.; is that correct?

A, Well, I think that -- I think I menticnad

a couple of thinge that we understand may have

hnppeneq at Texae Iastrumenkt during that time.

Q. Okay. Explain thosa to ma, what-Ford's
perspective ia as far ag what was happening at T.I.
during the time. And tell me firat, when you say

during that time, what time period are you talking

about?
A. It would be the 1992 time frame.
Q. The entire year?
A. Again, xeally, our perspedtive, our

|insight into that time is T.I.'s Highlight

doecuments. And really, we only bave what that =zays
a8 far ae to what may have been golng on at Texas
Instrument at th; time .

Q- Okay, Give for me, if you can, the recall
period. What does Ford conslider the rescall period
as far as when the switches were manufactured?

A. Cur only real ability is looking at -- at

AAA COURT REFCRTERS 712 466-93245
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_identifying the recall period ig from the trend
dakta. And that waould make it switches that were

potentially builk prior to November of 1592.

a. Going back how far?

A. To the start of the switches.

Q. And what year?

A, I believe T.I. started producing switches

for Ford at the end of 1991.

Q. "S8o the end of 19%1, whatever month it was
that T.I. began producing switchea for Ford up until
November of 19%%2, that  is the recall population as
far as Ford understande 1it?

A. That's the recall population ©f vehicles,
right.

Q. Okay. The racall peopulaticns as you have
just described it would include apead éuntrol
deactivation switches that were manufactured by T.I.
both on thelr autemated crimping procens and on
their manual ecrimping process, xight?

A. That was Ilncluded, yes.

2. ckay. Backing up smome of my guestions, I
had asked you, az far as Ford i concerned zabout the
manufacturing defeara -- And we'll just say it that
way -- a8 far as T.I. and with the_praductinns of

the switches, what manufacturing defects, if any, is

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 468-9325
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Ford specifically looking at in the T.I. process as
the cause for these fires?

A, The areaa, agaln, ldentified in the Texas
Instrumentge Highlights that they specifically
mentioned for falluree in the Kapton had to do, I
think there was -- crimp pressure was one of the
identified items, the placemant of a gasket seal was
identifiaed. I guess I'd have to look apecifically
ac socme pf the Highlight documents aa to if there
wera any others, but I do recall those two
specifically.

o. Okay. So I want to make sure I understand
your teatimony correctly. Ford 1is looking at
passible manufacturing defects as the root cause of
thie problem beyond simply the pericd of time where
T.I. had the auvtomated wvarsus manual crimping, the
90-day period that they had a varilance for Ford to
de manual drimping varsus automated crimplng; is
that right?

A Tha -- The trend data and the parts
raturnag from the field appears though that the
defecr: was -- was essgntially. if not Beolely, in the
automared time period.

Q. Okay. &o the information you're getting

back or that Pord's getting back as a result cof

AAA CCOURT REPORTERS 713 4466-9325
95%7 Jones Road, No. 383, Houston, Texas 77065

ERE2-gF-f 12283




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

158

13,

20

21
iz
23
24

25

54

¢

looking at the switches in the fields is that there

were more fires; im that right, firesm or were they

Juat defects?

A. Well, the -- the data that we were
looking --~that we were Looking at for the trend
data was speclifically looking at fires that -- that

could've bean associated with the brake pressure
gwitch. The field data or the field parts that we
logoked at coming back were not necessarily fires.
But ewitches that had some thermal anomaly such as
the plastic had deformed from heat.

Q. S0 the population of switches that you're
loocking at as far ap defacte to analyze what wmay
have been causing some probklem 1ln the cars is not
lithited totally to just fires; it could be any kind
of thermal anomaly, as you sald?

A. Correct.

Q. And as far as Ford's ilanvestigaticn, the
number of incldents with the switcehes actually
incraamed after T.I. atarted the automated crimping
precess in March of '32a?

A. That appaare to be the cape in acme of the
analyala, but it's not clear that that's necess;rily
the break-off peoint.

Q. 8¢ at this point -- I just want to make

AAR COURT REPDRTERS 713 45579325
8597 Joneasa Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77085
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 Bure that I understand correctly -- Ford can't limit

itaelf to saying that the manufacturing defect was a
result of the manual variance in the crimping
process during the_limitedfau-day period?

A. HNa.

Q. So that is correct, they cannot limit
themselves in that regard?

A Correct. |

- MZ. WEINER: Can 1 borrow the Hi-stat
exhibits?
MR. MAYER: Yeah.

Q. You were asked soma questions about
Exhibits 3 and 4, which are the Hi-Stat teast
results. Can you explain for me who Hi-Stat ia and
who hired them to do this teating for Ford?

A. Hi-g3tat im a company in Lexlngton, Ohio
that also can -- or makea presgure pwitches similar
te T.I.'s product; not exactly the same. We asked
them to de a comparison -- or not a comparison --
but to run a test to some T.1. parts to see what
the -- to gee how their activiktiea, that is,
Hi-Stat's test, would effect what the T.I. parts
locked 1ike from a reliabllity point.

a. Before thim testing was done by Hi-Stat,

is Hi-5tat a suppller to Ford Mcoctor Company or were

ARR COURT REPCRTERS 713 466-%325
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they a supplier beforehand of certain products and

components? Does Ford buy their praducts?

A Hi-Sktat is a supplier toc Ford of some
products,
D. Okay. 1Is Hi-Stat a competitor of Texas

Insetrumentes?
- I understand that they are.
a. aAnd Hl-8tat has just recently 1n September

of this year done the testing tchat you described.

|And as I understand yaur'tastimcny rggarding the

teat results, the Kapton diaphragmms did not -- with
the exceptlon of one, all of them failed before the
500,000 life cycle test was completed?

A From the testing here, it says that yes,
all of them had a leak prier te 500,000 cycles
except for one,

0. Okay. Part of your jcb as -- I'll just
put it in the wvernacular -- leading up the Ford
investigative group, with raegard to these -- you
know, the failurem in theasa switchesa, your greup put

together the field review committee report --

A. YTen.

Q. -- 1z that right?

A, Yeasz. |

2. And thls was put out sometime in mid 1393;

AMAR COURT REPORTERS 713 4a6-9315
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Tgxas 77065
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is that right?

A Yes.

Q. I apologize, I'm going ko probably you my
document that's got stickies and highligﬁts and
things, bBut at least we can talk about the same
document. Were you baaically responsible for

putting out thie report, the filield review committes

report?
a. Yan,
2. Mine has a draft dates of 5-28-%%2. Dg you

know if therea wam anything later than that?

A. I don't know what the most recent date is.

Q. Okay. Is that a document that you
continue to updakte angd make changes to as Ford
learns more about the case?

A. We would update it aé we learn more,
although the last updata Han been some time ago.

Q. Can you give ma a parled, months or years?

Do you ré:all vaguél? when the last update would’'ve

heen?

A Thig may, in fact, be the lasc update.

Q. Okay.

A I don't knaﬁ that.

Q. Okay. Amgsuming this is the last update,
this draft, 5-28-99 -- And juat for purposes of the

AAMA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-2225
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trecurd, the Bates npumber is 37136132 through
37136161, produced by Ford.

ME. FEENEY: Monligua, whg don't you
just put an exhibit sticker on that.

MS. WEINER: Okay. 1Is5 our next cone
Neo. 5% And what we‘li do ie, we can just get a copy
of thig so I can take mine bhack. Let's just do it
that way.

{Exhibit No. 5 marked.}

Q. Attachment 4 to Exhibit 5 -- And it's --
the page is 37136147 -~ The attachments references
that during the tests that were done, I guess, oOn
the speed contrel deactivatien switch, is that
right, te ase under what circumstances they may
fall.

A. Yam.

Q. Do you recall that?

A. Uh-huh.

c. And feel free to look at the entire
discussion of the testing. But the results that are
put forth in this Ford document, as of May of 1935,
atates that the Kapton seal exceeds the design
specification of 500,000 life cycles. Do you recall
that to be Ford's cooclusion as a result at the end

of 1t testing in May of 19997

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Rcad, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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1 ) A. That was the conclusion for those parts
. 2 that were teated that were alsc produced in -- it

3 was probably 1990 to 19959,

4 0. So what you're telling me is, the parts
5 that were tested thar were part of your field review
g committee report were not necessarily the recall

7 population; is that right.

a A. That's right.
S Q. And you don't know for sure that this
10 Hi-Stat testing was necesearlly the recall

11 populatction éither, right?

1z A. It probably was not the recall papulaticn.

13 Q. Okay. Do you have any explanation for why
. 14 in Ford's testing the Kapton seal would've exceeded

15 thé lifs cycle specification that Pord gave and in

16 :|the Hi-Stat tasting it did not paas that life cycle
17 specification?
18 ' A. The explanation might be that the Hi-Stat

132 |test may have actually besn run at a higher

20 temperature .than the specification.

Z1 a. Okay. Do you know the acktual temperatura

22 that the Hi-Stat tests wera rupn at?

23 A. No, I do not.
24 Q. Do you recall what the Ford apecification
253 Lamperature wasa?

Ahdd CQURT REPORTERE 713 46£-9326
35%7 Janes Road, Ng. 363, Houaton, Teqxas 77065
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A. It says hera on Exhibic 3, 135 degrees,
plue or minus 14.

o. And the Ford aspeciflcation temperature wasg
what -- the tests were run that the results.are
included in the fleld commlttee report; is that
right?

A Thae field commlittee report regults were
actually runm by Texas Instruments. |

g. But Ford accepted those resgults as
consistént with what they were logcking at in the
investigation as far am whether the Kapton diaphragm
mat the specificatliona that Ford and T.I. had put
forward in connection with the speed control
deactivation switch?

- a. For the parts bullt at that time, yes.

Q. Do you know why Hi-Stat would've tested

the Kapton at a higher temperature than the Ford

gpecificatien?

A I don't know why they wpopuld've done that,
na.

0. And tﬁat would've affected -- And Ford

would expect that that would affect the l1life cycle
of the Kapton diaphragm; ias that right, the
temparature?

A. I don't know that Ford would axpect that

ARA COURT REFQRTERS 713 456-3932%5
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aither way. But that certainly could be an

explanation.

Q. Okay. Are there any other explanations
that you know of aa to why the Kapton diaphragm
would've passed in the field review ¢committee

testing that was done by T.I. and nct on the

Hi-Stat?
A. Not that I c¢ould put my finger on, no.
Q. Do you know 1f any tests have been run to

varity that the Kapton dliaphragm paased the 500,000

life cycle apacification £rom the recall population

af switches? Do you knew if any teste have been run

ocn those switchaes?

A. Juat from the summaries that were provided
by Texas Inatrument.

2. The Highlights deocumenta?

A. Theay -- During our investigation we asked
them if they haﬁ test data f;om that time pariocd and
they providad some aummaries of that.

A. Okay. Part of Ford's specification was
that the sapesd control deactivation swikches
manufactured by Texas Instruments had te pass the
500,000 life cycle ppecification in order to be
inatalled on the Ford vehicles, right?

A. That's correct.

AAA CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-93245
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Tgxas 77065
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Q. And so presumably, Ford verified before
any awltches were put on any Ford vehicleszs that
those switches had passed the 500,000 life cycle
test, correckt?

A It would've baen Texas Inastrumentg’
testing that would've been that wverificatian.

a. And Ford accepted that testlng as the
vaerifigoation that those -- even thcecse switeches in
the regall population had, in facr, passed that
teating; garrect?

A. Agaln, you'd have to refer to aomebody who
wae there at the time, but rthat would be Ethe
standard procedure, I would think.

a. Okay. When yvou say, refer ko somebody who
wal there.at the time, are you talking akout Efxom

Ford or 7.I1.'s parspactive?

Aa. From Ford.
Q. Okay. Who would that have been?
A. That would've been some of the supsrvisors

oY enginearm at the Eima.
Q. " Do you recall specific namas?
A, Let's ses. . There's, I think -- Well,
there's a truck supervigor who was there, ¥Wiru Modi.
Q. I'm aorry?

A, Hiru Modi. .

AAA COURT REFORTERS 713 4&56-3323%
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THE COURT REPORTER: Spell ic,
please.

THE WITNESS: I thinpk it's N-I-R-U
M-C-D-1,

. And he would'va been involved in the
verification that the switches manufactured by T.1I.
had, in fact, passed the 500,000 llfe cycle
Bpacification teskt?

A._ Ha would've been involved with reviewing

what information they mighttve had,

Q. On that lssua?
A. On that lsasus,
Q. And he's an employae ~- Is he a current

amployea of Pord?

A, Mo, he's nat.
g. Do yvou know when he left the company?
A. I don't know axactly, bPut I think it was a

few yeara ago.

Q. Do you know where he 18 now?
A, I chink he's ratired.
Q. - When you received the lettar from the

MNMational Tranapertation and Highway Safety
Administration with regard -- that, I gue=ss, started
the whole ilnvestigation; 1s that right?

A. Again, I didn't recelve the letter. But

AAA COQURT REPORTERS 713 466-2325
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-frmm -~ generically, Fort Motor Company received the
letter.

Q- Ckay.

A. That 1la whak started my inveetigation,

. And Ford may have had some investigation

going on befora that?

A. I don't know that.

Q. Tou're pnot aware of that personally?

A._ Na.

Q. Okay. Did thae National Highway
Transportation and Saféty Administration's focus on
the brake pressure switch give you an idea of where
to sktart your analymis?

A. Well, yes. My team was epeclfically
assigned to look at the brake pressure switch
because of che NHTSA letber.

2. And what's why -- Was any ancther
componant of the car or anything else 1nﬁked at
besides the brake brick pressure switch?

A, I believe the NHTSA had identifisd three
other posaible cﬁmpnnents.

Q: Okay. And yhat ware those?

a. I guass I'd prefer refarring to their
letcer exactly.

Q. Okay. You don't recall off the top of

ARR COURT REPDRTERS 713 4£466-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77085
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| your head?

A, I can guega, bhut I'm not sure what the
woerding was that they used was.

Q. Ckay. Did Ford also investigate those
three ntheé components t¢ gee if they were a
potencial cause of cthesa fires?

A. There was -~ Theare was another team that
locked at theosee, yes.

Q. ckay. And do you know what the
conclueicne of the other team were with regard to
the three other cnmpanénts?

A. I believe that the results pretty much
etand by themselves in that the tread data did net
show that thoas were -- were factaors.

: Q. So ag far as Ford was concernad, the Lrend
data only showesd that the brake pressure switch may
have been a factor in the fires? |

A. Yes.

a. You dimscussed a little kit the testlng
that was done by Texas Instruments to put foreign
eubatances 1ntulthe awitch to see whﬁt could
possikly cozrrede the switch or lead to a Eire. My
ﬁnﬁerstanding of tha Texas Inetruments' testing ;s

that the majority of the applications where they

could induce a fire, if you want te put it that

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
8557 Jonem Read, No. 363, Houston, Texaa 77065
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1 way --
. 2 A. Uh-huh,
3 Q. -- were when they did the saltwater

4 testing; ia char righe?

5 A. The saltwater teating was the test that

6 T.I. was able to repeak on a regular basis,

¥ g. Dkéy. The tests regarding brake fluid,

8 they wers not able to repeat on a ragular basis that

g the brake fluid would actually caussa a fire?
10 A. The T.I. tast using brake fluid, I'm not
11 aure how many parts théy ran. I think it was only a

12 few parts and they satopped chat teasting at 250

13 hours.
. 14 Q. Okay. Ia that a critic¢ism that Ford
15 have -- had -- or has that teating?
16 A. The taesta that we ran, 1t took 500 hours.
17 0. Okay. &and you testified about that, thar

18 Ford ran ltms own tests with regard to brake fluid.
19 |And was Ford able to repeat testing, I guess, at 500
20 hours, that brake fluid would then reault in a fire?
21 A. WE'ra.in tha-prncasd af brying to do thakt.
22 0. S0 as you sitbt here taﬁay, Ford has not

23 |been able to verify through validity teamting or

2¢ repesatad testing that the brake fluid entering the

25 electrical component would necessarily cauee a firxe? 5

AAA COURT REPORTERSE 713 456-9325
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A, That test is running as we are speaking
today, yes.
Q. Okay. So you can't give me conclusions

here today?

A. i can't give you a conclusion.

Q. Okay. In some of the documents that I've
logked at, there's discussicon that -- about
chlgrine. And maybe you can help me on the issue,

Chlorine ias only involved in the saltwater testing,
there is no chlorine that would be included in braks
fluid?

A. Again, I guess I'm not really
undefﬁtanding of all the chemietry that is involved.
Durlng our investigation we were logking at the
pofsibility with the contaminatien as coming in
through the connector and we thought that 1f that
was the case, that there would be a large amounts of
chlorine inside the switch if water gotten had in
through ths connecter,

Q. Okay. And te¢ date no chlorine has heen
found in the switchea that has hean returned to Ford
for teating; 1s that right?

A. There has not been a significant amount of
¢chlorine. There has been some chlorine that was --

that wasa found.

ABRA COURT REPORTERS 713 465-5%3125
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065
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. 1 - Q. But it was not encugh that Ford considers
2 that significant or a cause of the fires?
3 A. That's correct.
4 Q. Okay. ¥You talked abeut the -- of the 15
5 cr 290 switéhea vyou know that were involved in a
6 thermal event that have been tested and analyzed by
7 Ford, that all thas switchea have leaks in the

) Kapton. D¢ you recall that --
3 A. That's correct.
10 Q. -- teatimony? OQkay. 1Is there any way
11 that Ford can verify that those lsaka in the Kapton

12 pre-existed the fire, that 1z, that the leaks in the

. 113 Kapton were not caused by the f£ire, the thermal
14 even, a2 a reault cof some other part?
15 ) .A. I don't know how that would bhe defined.
16 Q. Has Ford tried to control for that in
17 inveatigating -- In lecking at the swikches or
18 |running an?-tusts on them, ls there any way that

19- |Ford has besn able to control for that, that the
20 poesibility that_tha leaks or the cracks in the
21 Kapton developed as a result of the fire?

22 A. I don't know what the mechanism Ls that

23 created the cracks 1in the EKapten.

24 c. Okay. 8¢ the fact that there were leaks

. 25 obsarvaed in the Kaptoen, has Ford been able to 5

ARA COURT REPCRTERS 713 466-5325
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necesaarily say that those leaks are what caused the
fire?

A. That those leaks are coneistent with -- or
in all of the cases that had thermal events and icv'g
Ford's det;}minatinn, that'es part of the neceszary
ingredient to a fire.

Q. Ae far -- T understand that Ford's
lnvestigation im atill ongoing and there may be, you
know, certain sgpecifice about the root cause of the
speed control deactivaktion switch problem that Ford
cannok answer., But aa ' far as 1ts current
investigatlion today, is there anything.as far as the
bulk product, the Kapton, or the 500-FN131 product
that was provided hy Du Paunt that wias incerporated
ints the switch by Texas Instrument, is there
anything with that Ford thinks was a problem that
created the fires in the case outslde of the

maﬁufactufing procega thakt T.I. may have put inte

the mix, 1f you wilil?

A. We den't have any Information on that.
Q. Asa you sit here today, does Ford have any
critlicieame of the bulk product, FN -- 3500-FN131

supplied by Du Pont for this switch?
A, We wouldn't hava any information on that

eithear.

AAA COURT REPORTERE8 713 466 -9325
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Q. Ckay. Are ycu aware that that same
preduct is used in swltches manufactured by Texas

Instruments that are in place in Ford veahicles

today?
A. I -- 1 believe that'a the case, ves.
3. Ford has neot ordered Texas Instruments or

any other aupplier to step using S00-FN13l in any of
its switches? |
A, Not that I'm aware.
MS. WEINER: 1 think that's all I
have. Pass the witness.
E X AMIWNATTIOMN
g. (BY MR. MAYER) When Ford -- This -- It's
Bric Mayer. When Ford decided to inatitute a recall
iﬁ-Hay cf 1999, were you involved in what che

suggeated action was going te be for Ford's

custocmera?
A. Yas.
Q. And was 1t your recommendation that Ford

purchasa 273,000 replacement sawitches from Texas

Instruments te put in the vahicles?

A. If that's what tha number is, yes.
Q. But you were in faver of that --
A. Yes.

Q. -- were you not, sir?

ARA COURT REFORTERS 713 486-9345
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a. Tes.

c. And vyou tola your management thakt you
thought that the correct action for Ford was to
replace the switches; is that your testimony?

A, T; replace the gwitches, yesa.

c. With ldentical switches manufactured by
Texas Instruments?

MR. JOLLY: Object to form.

A. It would'"ve been switchem that were built
by Texas Instrument int 15%81.

Q. Okay. They ;ere manufactured at a later
date, but they were virgually identical te the

gawitches that were removad ELrom the cars, aas far as

yvou know?

A, I don't balieve they were necassarily
identical.
2. What ware the diffarencas? Do yvou know?
A. The -- After the fact, based en the
highlights? ‘
D: No. What were tha'difﬁnrences in the

switcehes that were installed in 1993 and 2QQ0? What
werea the design changesa, 1f any? Are you aware of
anf?

A. At thﬂt-time?

Q- Yes.

ARA COURT REFPORTERS 713 466-9325
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] A. What I know is is that the designs -- the
design and/oxr process. that T.I. uszed to build those
switchea after 1991 were not showing the defect.

Q. So you believe that you got a bad batch of
switches ffnm Texas Instrumants at some time period
in '91 and '92, that's Ford's position?

A, I'm not asure that I would restrict it to a
bateh of bad switchen, yeas.

Q. Let's talk a moment about Lthe Campbell
case. Am I corract that 1in this case, the Campbell
cage currently pending-in Missisaippi, the one that
we're here in the deposition on, that you don't have
any evidence to suggesat that 1n that fire, a switch
manufactured by Texas Instrumenta waﬁ the cauge? Am
I correct about that?

A I'm net familiar with the Camgbell case.,

Q. But de ysu have any avideace Lo suggest
that the fire originated in that wvehiele at the
Texag Innt:um:@ts ewitch?

A. I'm not familiar with the Campbell case.

2. De you know what the pogitien of Ford

Motor Ceompany is in that litigation that welre here

on today?
A, No, I do not.
Q. Would it surprise you if the position of

AAA COURT REPORTERS 712 466-53225
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Ford Motor Company and its experts are that the fire

in the Campbell vehicie originated at the battery?

a, No, i1t wauld nct.

Q. Have you heard that from anycne?

A. Ilhave not heard that.

0. Why Qauld that not surprise vyou, that the

fire coriginated at the battery, Mr. Poxrter?

A. Becauege that may be what the Flre
investigaticn may have come up with.

Q. And you've seen that in other vehicles,
have you net? -

A, I haven't really eeen othar wvehigcle firea.

Q. Have you been involved in any other
vehicle fire inveetigatione for Ferd or is this your
Ei;st ona?

A, This would be my firsat one.

Q. Do you have any evidence, Mr. Porter, to

jAuggest that the Texas Inetruments switch installed

in the Campbell's vehicle cauaed tha fire?

A, I do not have any infegrmatlon onr that,
Q. Has anybody told you that it did?

“A. No.

Q. ¥You mentioned that Ford is currentcly

conducting some teata with hrake £luid and I'd like

to knew, approximately when did Ford start that

AAA COURT REPORTERE 713 466*9325
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test?

A. The present. test?

Q. Yea. You 8ald that Ford ia currently
testing a switch. I think vyou mentioned that --

<

with brake fluid to see. if a thermal event can

DCCUY.
A Uh-huh,
Q. And you mentionad that 1t's S500 hours and
go far no event has occurred. Am I corrsct?
A It has not -- It has not reached the 500

hours vet,

a. When did Ford sacart the teak?
A. I believe this particular tesc -- I would
have to refer back to -- to the technician who's

running the test to know exagtly when it ptarktad.

Q. Who 1s that?
A. Allen Janmkbiez.
Q. And give me a bkall park. Whan did

Mr. Janetic start running his tesat?

A. I think it was about two or three weeks
ago.

Q. Were you inveolved in deaigning the
protocol for the tesat, Mr. Pozrter?

A, 1 reviewad what they wera deoing.

Q. And did he prepare something in writing

12304
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A, Ho. I was just lgooking at the setup.

Q. And do you know how many switchea are
being resated?

A. i helleve it's sometrthing around five or
six.

Q. And what are the date codes on those
switches?

A. I think that they are 19%% date codes.
I'm not sure exactly which.

2. Dkay. &nd how are the switches belng
lmpragnated with brake f£luid?

A. A hole was punched in the Kapton and brake
filuid is entered in through the hex port inco
tha -- inte the switch cavity.

Q. S0 am I correct, that Ferd Motor Company
is cutting open thelawitches. puncturing the Kapton

intentionaliy and then sealing tha switchesz kack up?

A. HNa,

Q. How are you getting the hole in the
Kapton'®

A With a punch through the hex port.

Q. Can you msxplain how that workas?

A. The hex port 1s a round hole in the flulid

side of the switech and it ia opened from that hole

A2l COURT REPORTERS 7131 466-932E5
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intc the Kaptaon and soc with a punch the Kapton is
accasesible.

Q. So Ford'a intentlonally insezrting a aharp
object in the hex port to puncture the three layers
of Kapron ;o that brake fluld will migrate to the
other side of tha awitch?

A. Yaoa .

0. And do you know whe in additilon te Ford isa

participating in thie tast?

A. I baliave 1it's juat Ford,

2. Where is it Being done, what Ford
facility?

A. Over in our laboratory in Building 5.

Q. Now, you mentioned when Ms. Weiner was

arking yvou about the invastigation that you
participated in, that you ware not involved in the

taam that lcoked at othar Ford compenents; is that

correckt?
A. That's corrsct.
Q. Okay. And who ware the jindividuala thatc

ware lnvolved in thoss investigations?

A. The lead locking at those waa a aupervisor
named Tom Mastara.
Q- And waa that 2 completsly ssparate

investigation from your tmam?

AAA COURT REPRQRTERS 713 466-%335
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Aa. Not completely separate. He was involved
in looking at the informaticm for the brake pressure
switch alsc,

Q. Now, you sald in your testimony when
Mx. H:iner’waa asking you, did vyou look at the other
deponents and you sald no, I @idn't, but some aother
people did. Now wa know it's Mr. Masters. You sgaid

that the trend data did not smhow that thoee other

components were factors. Do you recall testifying
to that?

A. I believe that's what I said.

Q. Explain £g me how the trend data was used

te rule out fires and other components.

A I don't know how thay did that with the
other components.

Q. Would it be fair to pay that vyou wers not

invelved in chae?

A. Rot in doing those other componenta --

Q. Lnﬁ yoeu don't have --

A. -- no.

a. -- any Eirsthand knowledge of that?

A. Enrrn¢t..

Q. 8o when you said that, that really wasn't

something you had participated in, was 1t?

a,. That was something that was reported back

ABRA COURT REPORTERS 712 4&66-9325
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Eo us.

Q. And you don't even know how it was done,
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. ﬁbw, the trend data, as I underatand it,
Mr. Porter, ls somsbody deciding whén certain fires
occurred in cars; ie that right?

A. Thaey lookaed at 211 the vehigle lines
and -- for -- for fires.

Q. Who did that?

A, It was pecople working with Tom Masters.

Q. Who looked at the trend data? I'm trying
to find the name of the team that did that.

A It would've been Tom Masters,

Q. You doen't know who on his team lopked at
the_trend data?

A. Na, I can't =- I don't know who else waa
on the team.

Q. And when you aay trend data, explaln to us
what you nean by that. What is exactly the trend
data that you ara refarring to?

A. Okay. SPEqifically for the brake pressure
awitcﬁes, they were leokling at customer report bhack
of fires and they wera looking at things that was --

would be asgociated with the brake pressure switch

AAR COURT REPCORTERE 713 465-91325
9597 Jones Road, No. 3583, Houston, Téxam 77065
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failing pricr to the fire.

o. Okay. That's on your team?
A, Yeah.

Q. Okay. And the person who did that for

your t=am is who?

A. IE wae -- Tom Maetere team was looking at
that alsac.
Q. Okay. But did you have somebody on your

taam who looksd at rapoxte from Ford Warranty and
Ford mechanica to debermine Firea that oecurred in
'$#2 and '%3 Linceoln Town Cars?

A. Tom Masters was a part of my team.

Q. And he would be the best person to spaak
te abouk how that trend data was collected?

- A Yeon.

Q. You did not participate in the cellection
of it, did you?

a. Ho, I did not.

Q. Did you interview any people whoae
vehiclea =xperienced a thermal event?

A. No, I did npot.

QL Would everything you know abeout the trend
data be something that aither pecple told you or you
learnad from othere?

A. Or it was reported to us, yea.

A2A COURT REFDRTERS 713 466-9325%5
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a. And when we -- when you read the trend
data for the brake pressure gwitch, was it a simple
collection of dates of -- of wvehicles chat had
experienced some type of thermal event?

A. It was graphical.

Q. It war aktached t¢ the documents
Mz. Weiner ahowed you, wasn't it?

A, I didn;t look at 1t, but it should'we bhean
in there, vyen.

Q. And was there eseparate data for each
compenent? In cther waérdas. wag there one sst oF
trend data for the brake pressure switch and then
one sek of data for the air leveler asystem or the
EEU relay or whatevary the 1t waa?

- A I don't know what tha -- what it loockead

like for the octher parts.

Q. Did you ever see it?
A. I -- I didn't gee 1lt, no.
Q. Now, explain to mes how tha trend data that

you did look at for the brake pressure switch
supported your Ennc;usinn that there wera two
possible root causess brake fluid entering through
the diaﬁhragm and water getting.thrnugh the
connector.

A, The trend data does ncot support two

AMRR CQURT REPORTERS 713 4&66-9125
8597 Joanes Road, No. 363, Housten, Texras 77065
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Q. Okay. Did the reports that you provided
to managemenkt until -- Well, has -- have you
provided any formal report te management that
elininates water coming through the connector as a

potential root cause?

A. I don't belisve wae hava.

Q. Okay. In fact, if we looked at the -- the
ducum=n; Ma. Wainer marked -- I think it was Exhibit
5, 1f you'd pass it back to me -- 1t'm entitled

Fleld Review Committee. And this one‘'s dated May of
1999. And where it pays: Define rocot cause, would
you read to the iury what your group has written in
there?

A. Wa have neot identifled the root cause,

gpaed control -deactivation awltchas appear to be

‘suaceptible to brake fluld leaks and corroasicn that

may create':nnducﬁive.path ig the swiktch, resulting
in overheating. Analysis preformed on field samples
cf tha speed control deactivation ewitches involved
in under hood fires hae not allowsd us to conclude
that the spasd control deactivatian ewitch waa the
cause of tha firen.

Q. Did ™Mr. Purter.-have you ever changed that

gentence in any rapozt to Pord's management?
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n A, I don't believe that we have.

Q. Sitting here today, in November of the
year 2000, B0 we're on & year-and-a-half bheyond that
a date and there have been cther drafts. Am I
gcorrect that you and your taam, your stilill official
position in the 14-Ds thﬁt have been filed with your
managsment &re that -- the passage you just read us?

A. The -- Our pesition is that the defect is
a hole in the Kapton, which isg differsnt than what
this says. But that doesn't change the recall
pepulation or the reauits of the racall. 8o there
has not been a nesd to go back te management with
that update.

@. Okay. I understand that.

MR. MAYER: Object, nonresponsive.

Q. Juat answer my guestion. Am I correct
that teday, November, 2000, you have yet Lo gubmit
anything formally in writing to your management to
contradict the statements you just read us from you
rapert filed in thie matter?

A. Am I said, we have not updated thes report
to reflgct that since 1% would not have an effect on
the recall.

Q. Now, this fellew, Niru Modi, ie that his

namevy

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9225
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A,

Uh-huh.

Have you spoken to him recently?
Yes, I did,.

When did you speak to him?

It wam a couple of weeks ago.
You called him or he called you?
I called him.

What did you call him forv

To ask him if there wase any informaktion

that he might have on this.

Q.
A.
o,

to call?

Okay. How did you find his name?
Ee was oh the Internet.
I mean, how did you know he was the person

id somebody tell you you should call him

or-did you make thar determination on your own?

A,

.

A.
about the

developed.
0.
A
o.
A

going on.

His name was in the T.I. Highlights.
And what 4id you ask him?
T asked him 1f he remembared anything

time frame when the switch waa being

And what wae his position at the time?

When I asked him?

"Yer, Bir.

That -- Thart Did he remamber what was

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5%325
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Q. No. I'm sorry. I mlaunder -- I want to
know what his position at Ford was at the time in
1991, 1992.

A. I believe he was the superviscr for the
truck group that was looking at using the
deactivation switch.

2. And I go back tc what you answered that
I -- What did he say when you asgked him, did he
remember anything?

A. Ee remembered -- He said that he
remembered a lot of -- a lot of things; that he does
remenbiar that time frame.

Q. Ard what did you and he discuss? I mean,
what kind of guestions did you ask him?

A, Bagically, I agked him if he would be
willing te talk ko our attarnéys.

2. Okay. And what did he say?

Aa. Yes.

Q. And did you ask him anything other than,
would you be willing te talk to our attorneys? Did
you aak him any;hing about the merite or what was in

the Highlighta or anything like that?

A, Nao, I didn't.
Q. How long did you talk with him?
A, I think 1t wag five or ten minutes.

AAA CCURT REPORTERE 713 4686-3325
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Q. Okay. And have you told me everything
that you can recall that you and he diacuszsed?

A. Yezah. Yes,.

2. Do you know LE -- Lf he hae met with

cthere at %nrd?

A. I den't know if he has or not.

g. By the way, whare deoesa -- whare doss he
work?

A. I believe he's retired now.

2. - And you qaid you got hig number thraugh

the Internet?

F. Yan.
Q. Do you s8till have his phone number?
A. Hot with me.

) Q. I mean, you have it in your office?
A, ¥Yes.
2. Hava you apcken tc any other ex-Ford

Emplnyees'eithur during the year 2000 or at the time

this invegstigation wae ongoing?

A. Can you restate Ehat? I'm not sure
what -- )

Q. It was a bad guestion. Let me rephrase
it. Have you spoken to any ex-Ford employeas in the

course af your inveatigation other than this

gentleman?

ARA CQURT REPORTERE 7113 lﬁE-EEZS
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A. Noa.
Q. He's the first one you contacted and that

wis 1n November of 20007

A. It was maybe in Qctober,.
a. The recall was May of 1999, correct?
A, Yes .

0. Mow, thzre wag alsc aome exhibits in E£ront
of you, these are tests that were produced to us
just recently. I don't have did exhibit numbers

hecausgse I wag =--

A. 3 was Saptamhar 27 and 4 was May 12th.
2. What is the exhibit on the Ford report.
A. The exhikit on the Ford report is --

MS8. WEINEE: &%. I'm BOXry.

. That'e Exhibit 17

A. Yag .
Q. And then there's two reportes -~- two
documents from Hi-Stat. One of them haa some

handwritten, raceived from so and so. What exhibit
number ia chat?

A. That'e Exhibit No. 3.

Q. And then the other one'asa Exhibit 47
A. Yes.
Q. Thank you. Take a loock at Bxhibit 4.

Okay. And there's a -- On the firat page there's a

AAA COQURT REPORTERS 713 466-9315
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name, Prepared by Roger Nieter or Nester. Do you

gsm=e that?

A, I guess I don't see that. Okay.

Q. Lock at --

A, Dkay. In the Ccorner,

. Up at the top right, May 12, 2000, Page 1

of 3, Prepared by Roger Nleter, Procject Engineer.

Aa. ¥an.

g. Have you ever spoken with Mr, Nieter?

A, Ko, I have not.

Q- Were you present when any of this test in

Exhibit 4 was runr?

A. No, I was nat.

Q. Do you know hcwrit's run -- how 1t was
ruh?

A, No, I do not.

Q. Would I ba correct that you're not here

teatifying that these resulte in the report are
aomething that you are personally familiar with?

A. Carrect,

g. You don't know whether the results reached
here wera the results that were reached ky test
procedures that you would'wve run, correct?

A, Correct.

g. Now, there's momething hera., It's a date

AAMN COQURT REPOATERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Read, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77085
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lcode and it says: WN/A. Do you see that on the
left-hand side?

A, Yes, I do.

a. Now, all your specificatlons reguire that

all T.I. parts have date codes stamped on them --

A, Yas.

Q. -- ¢orrect, alr?

A. That's correct.

o. Ckay. And sc the date codes are cne way

to can Erack when a particular device was
manufactured by Taxas Instruments?

A. Yesl

. Now, ©on this tesat, Exhibit 4, there is no
information en the date codes. Am I right about
that?

A. It doas not appear to be on there.

Q. So we have no way of knowing when thoae
parts weare ﬁanufactured: is that right?

A. That's correct. |

0. You deon't know whether the parts were
manufactured in 1991 or 159%%, correck?

a. We deon't have a way of knowing Lhat.

a. Uh-huh, |

A. However, Bince tha parts that have gotten

relative to that time frame, i1t'g unlikely that they

AZAARA COURT REFPOETERS 713 4RE-5315
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were from 1991.

o. But you don't know for a fact because you

|were weren't at the test?

A. For a fact, I deon't know thaet.

Q. In fact, the taest should have a date code
in ik, ahouldntt it?

A. Well, I think that the individual parts
should have the date codes on them.

qQ. If vyou look at the next page. thers ig a

series of switches that apparently they did do some

testing on-. Do any of those have dates codes?

A. There dogen't seem to be a.date code
there.

Q. Okay. AaAnd 1f you looked at the first
page -- Well, do vyou Enaw whe designed the testing

protocol for this teet?

A. I believe it would've been Hi-Stat.

o Not Ford? |

A. Not Ford.

Q Okay. Look at the teat procedure. It

BAYE: 20 parta (10 --- F2AC-9F924-2AA & 10 ---
F2VC-9F324-AB). Thoae letters, the F2AC, those are
Ford part numbers, ares they not?

A. Yeg.

Q. And that's a -= That's a unigue ldentifier

AAA COURT REFCRTERS 7131 £6&-932%
5597 Jones Road, No, 363, Houston, Texas 77065




a4

1 Ford puts on the parts and they ask Texas

. 2 Instruments and all its suppliere to typlcally stamgp
a the parts wlth the Ford part numberz?
4 A. Te have some itdentification, yes.
5 Q. Ancd what is the difference batween the twa
& parts? Do they go on differeﬁt cars?
7 A. I believe that -- And I'm not sure which

8 iz which, off the teop of my head right now. But ane

9 of those ls used only for the Tewn Car.
10 Q.- - Right.
11 a. And -- But both of them may be found on

12 the Crown Vic and Grand Marquis.
13 Q. Ckay. And you're not familiar, sicting
. 14 here today as Ford's rep. on which part is which; is

15 |[that right?

ls A . I --

17 Q. Do you need to look at something?

18 A. Y&ah.

19 ' Q. Ckay. It'ms nok a ﬁemary game. I just

20 want te make sure you don't know cff the top of your

21 head.

22 A. I don't know off the top of my head.

23 Q. Okay. Did-ynu look at this tast raesult

24 when it -- When digd vyou first get thiz, this

25 document, Exhibit 4?7 When did you first see it? g'

AAM COURT REPORTHRES 713 466-5315
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A. I think I probably saw it scmetime --
Well, it would've been after May 12th. I den't know
how long after that it would've been.

Q. Would it be aafe., the way Ford operates,

to assume you got it sometime . shortly after

May 13ch, 200Q7

A, It wouldn't surprilae me if it weren't
until Juns or July.

g. Dkay. But you would've reaceived it,
surely.-sometime in the zummer?

A, I think #o.

Q. Okay. And did you discusa the results of
this report with anycone from Texas Instruments?

A No, we did net.

Q. Did you tall anyons from Texas Instruments

fthat You had thia test run and what the results

were?

A. Ho, we 4ld nat.

¢. Do you know whatheér pacple in your -- on
your staff discusseed this test with anyon= from
Texas Instrumenta?

A, I dan't believe- thay did.

Q. Does Hi-St;t provide pressure awltches té
Ford today?

A. Genarically?

AAMAAR COURT REPDRTERS 713 466-9315
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Q. Yes, sir.
A. - I guess I really don't know Chat.
Q. I was going to ask you to explain what

type of product they provide. Do you know?

A fhey -- They provide a pressure Lype
device, I don't know if it's a presasure switch,
prassure gsensor. I don't know 1f it's directly to

Ford or to a aub-gupplierxr.
Q. You wouldn't be the right person to ask,
there would bhe somehody else that would be more

Familiar with thia?

A ¥Yes.

Q. And you don't kneow who that wauld be?
A. Ho, 1 don't.

Q. Do you know where the switches were

obktained from that were uassd in this test?

A, I believe they wara purchased at a
dealerahip.

g. Ia that somecthing somebody told you?

A. That -~ Yegah. I mean, again, I -- I don't
think -- I guess I'm not really sure whare those

swltchea came fram.
2. You teuched upon eomething I do want ta
discusa theough. Let us asgsumes that the awitchesn

were purchased by Ford at cne of it's Ford

AAd COURT REPORTERS 713 456-5;25
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dealerships. Okay?

A. Uh-huh. Yes.

Q. Let's talk a little bit about the way that
thisa part was supplied. PFirast, let'a talk about how
it's supplied today and then wa'll talk about 1591
and '92. Are there Ford vehicles that are still
using brake pressure switches manufactured by T.1.7?

A. Taa.

Q. And can you give the Jury an idea of the
nurber of millione of pwltches that T.I. has
provided to Ford over éhe last six, seven years?

A. Millione wauld bhe the right number, but I
don't know how many.

O. And tell the jury what vehicle linea azre
using those switches.

A. #ahicla linee today are vehileclas using
spead :antrpl that are the F Series, basically, the
truck hran&s.

2. What about your -- your Explorera?

A. I baliave thgy're on the Explcrere.

What about Expeditions?

2.

A. I believe they're on the Expeditions.
Q. What about Windatar wvans?

A. I think they're cn the Windatar.

2. And how about F-150 pickup truck?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5325
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A Yas .

Q. F-250 pickﬁp truck?

A, If they have speed control, yea.

Q. The pafts that area being supplied tocday,

they aren't sold directly from Texas Instruments to
Ford, are they?

A. I'm not sure exactly what all the
procesapes are, but some of chem are,

ﬂ-_ Well, when you were doing your
inveastigaktion onm 1992 and 1953 Linceln Tawn Car
firea, I'm sure, ones ué the things you were
interested in 18, how does this part get to a Ford

tactory for installation.

A. Yen.

) Q. You were interested in that, weren't you?
A. Yes.
Q. Why wﬁuld you be interested in Ethat,

Mx. Porterﬁ Tall the jury.

A. We were interested in knowing what Ltha
different effecta might be that -- that would effect
the switch,

o. Things can happan to a switch in the
distribution c¢hannel, correst, sir?

A. I gueas 8oO.

Q. Ford's seen that in other problems it's

AAA CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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‘had with vehiclem, hasn't it, air?

a. I don'tc knﬁw that.

Q. Do yecu recall that a similar brake
pressure ewitch that was supplled tc Ford, Australia
had pruhleﬁs because the Ford factory in ﬁelhnurne_
puliad a vacuum on Lthe switeh that was excessive?

A. I den't remember that.

Q. Did you come across that in your

investigation in this casga?

A. I den't remembar I1If I did or not.

é. ¥You don't di;pute it though, do you?

A. I wouldn't dispute it.

0. Back to my original line of guestioning:

The reason you wanted to kaow the chain of
di;tribution, Mr. FPorter, im because you were
curious to find out where this switch went after it
left Texas Instruments to see whether anything could
have happened to it to have caused pfdblema that you
Eelieved may exist in the switch, right?

A. That was what we were trying to find out.

Q. and did you, in fact, investigate the

chaln of distribution fer this awitch in the '21,

182 clme frame?

A. We understood that Lhig awiteh for tha

Town Car was delivered to a company namad Highlight

AAA COQURT REPCRTERS 713 465-9325
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.and that they delivered that ultimately to Ford.

Q. They didn't just turn the switch arcund
and ship it again; they actually installed it into
the proportional valve of the vehilcle, correct?

A. fhat‘s what I understand, vyaes.

Q. So the jury's clear, Texas Inatruments
manufactures these switches during this time frame
in Masszchusatts; is that right?
| A. That's what I understand.

Q. And yvou ilnvestigated that during this
investigation, didn't Qnu? ¥You wantad to know where
the awitches were manufacturad, right?

A. We did ask Texas Instrument where thay
were manyfactured.

B And they teold you they were in
Massachusetts?

A. That's cerrect.

Q. And then you wantad tq ﬁnuw, wall, what
happened .to the switch aftér'it left Texam
Instruments, rightv?

A. That'a zight.

Q. And those switches that are ahipped out of
Texas inatrumante, they're shipped in bulk; they’'rs

noet attached to anything; they're manufactured, put

in a box and sent off to a Tier 1 suppller that ia

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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designated by Ferd; is that correck?

A. I don't know 1f that's correct or not.

Q. Is that the way you undergtood the
distribution chain in thls inveatigation that vyou
were 1in chérge of for this parc?

A. I don't know that -- how they were
shipped? You sailid chat they were ahipped in bulk,
I don't know if they were shipped in bulk or not.

@.  But you know they were shipped by T.1. as
jumst mwitches alone, not attached to anything, teo
another aupplier of Fn;d's, right?

A. Yas.

Q. And Ford is the one. that tells Texas
Instruments where to ship these parts, correct?

A, My underatanding is, at that time frame,

that Ford directed Hi-Stat to ume the T.I. switch.

Q. Ckay. Was it Hi-Stat or Hi-Strength?
A, Highlight. I'm sBorry.
2. And so, in the -- in tha 1991, 1%92 time

frame for Lincoln Town Cars, Texas Inmstruments

shipred the @gwitches to a company, Highlight

Industriea?
A. Yes.
Q. And how did you determine that?
A. Texas Inatrument told ua th;t.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 455*9325
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Q. And when the awltches are received by
Highlight Industries, what did you understand were
then done with them?

A, What I underatand is that they insgtalled

the pruparéioning valve.

Q. Okay. Whar elae did they have ko da?
A That was when they --

0. Do you know, is my guestion?

A I don't know.

2. But you don't have firsthand knowledge one
way or the other of what exactly was dona by
Highlight Industries when the part wag receiveé. Am
I cvorrect on that?

A. That ie corrackt.

2. Okay. A= far as you know, something was
done, they installed it te a proportional valve and
then what happened te the awitch; now it's
incorporated ints someone else's part, «orract?

A. That's -- Yas.

g. Who made the proporticaal valve that Chis
awvitch was incorporatad into?

A. I balieve Highlight made the properticnal
valve, rigkt.

Q. And ware there any -- The switch has an

electrical aide to it. Do you recall that?

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-39315
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a. That'a correctk,

Q- Where is that electrical connector sealed?
Is thaF sealed at Highlight Industrie; or 1s that
then coanected at -- up at the Ferd factory where
the vehicle's assenbled?

A. I -- I'm not sure wherae it'g gent then.

0. Wall, let's ba clesar. I'm talking about
the seai that you menticned in the Exhiblit 5 that
you said may be a root ciuse for thass leaks.
Correct, slr?

A, It was identified ag -- by Taxaa
Instrumentcs.

a. Right. And 18 it your tedbimony that you
do net know where that seal was placed on the
vahicle, whether it was done at Highlight Industries
or at Ford's Wixom plant?

A. That -- The zeal connector would'wve been
done at the Ford's Wixom plant.

Q. Okay. So at Highlight Industries, we know
thar some things wara done, tha awitech that T.1I.
manufactured was connected to a proportional valve
that was mlnufacturuq'by Highlight Industries --

a, Uh-huh..

Q. -- and othay componante may ©r may not

have been included in that prepackaged asassmbly. I=

AMR CQURT RERPORTERS 713 486-3325
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that a fair statement?

A. That's a fdir statemantc.
Q. Okay. Yeou don't know what the other

components wers or aven if there were some?

A, Correct.
Q. All right. Then that product -- Lekb's
just call it the -- cthe asssmbled componenkts -- is

thaen shipped by Highlight Industrisa momewhare else,

correct?
A, That'a corrack.
o. So it i® now moving to another locatien

and where -- as your investigation revealed, where
did that part go then?
A That would'wve gane to the Wixom Assembly

Flant for the Town Car.

Q. Okay. And rchat plant 1a located where?
A. Wixom, Michigan.
@. And is that plant owned and operated -- At

the time, wae it owned and opasrated by Ford?

A. Yez,

Q. Now, I've heard a name in -- or I read a
name 1n some of the documants, Visteon. What
connection did Visteon have, 1f any, to this apeed
control system? |

A. In 19981, '52 the Electronics Divisicon of

ARR CUURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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|Ford Motor Company was developing the speed control

sysatemn.
Q. Gkay.
A That Electronics Piviasion has since been

apun aoff as a geparate company hamed Visteon.

0. I guese, 8o it'a ¢lear for the jury,
during the time the speed control system was
degigned by Feord, it was designed by a Ford
suhaidigrr named Viateon. Ia that a fair statement?

- It was dasligned by a Ford division named
Electronica Division.

Q. Part of Vvistecon®?

A, Englneers who were working in the
Electronice Divislon were -- wenk Lo work and became
pafrt of Viakeon,

Q. So Visteon as a separate company did not
really exiat in 1991 and r%2; 1ls that --

A. That'se currgct.-

= Okay. And if somegne =mald they worked for

Viateon in '91 and *'s2, that would not make sense,

given the corporate structure?

A. That's correct.

2. They would've said: I work for Ford?

A. That'es corxect.

ﬁ- So the engineers that designed the speed

BAA COURT REPCRTERES 713 466-532%
9537 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texas 77065

17331




1z

11

12

13

i4

15

14

17?7

18

1s

20

21

22

23

24

25

1032

_ccntral system that went in the '92, '83 Lincoln

Town Car, they worked for Ford?

A, Yes,

Q. Ckay. Back to the chain. The 33sembled
cnmpansnts‘are shipped by Highlight Induetries ko a
plant, the Wixom plant where the Lincoln Town Cars
are made. Was that the only plant that made Lincoln
Town Cars in that time frame?

A. Yas.

2. Ckay. And Ford would give inmtructions to

ship the part to its factory, I assume?

A I -- This makes sensa. I would assume
that alseo.

Q. Okay. And d¢ you know what kXind of time
lag we're talking about for when the product leaves

Teaxas Instruments until it shows up at Wixeom?

A It could ba -- Ho, I don'k. I nean --
Q. Did you ilnvestigate that in thies
lnveatigation®

A. We dld talk te people and ask them what
typs of lag time there. could be. .We datermined from
that di;:usuinn -~ being digcuaainn points and net
being data -~ that it could be anywhers from 15 to
60 daya,.

Q. Okay. Sc when you say ir'a a discussaion

AAM COORT REPORTERS 713 466-5%325
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points, not a data, what is the difference? I don't

understand. Ie that just somebody talking?

A. Somebady talking about their process flow
and not -- not actually timing irt.
Q. You did not deem that accurate encugh to

be categorized as data?

a. Carrect.

Q. Okay. So did you, in fact, do any more
investisatiun other than just talk to people to
figure ocut what chat dalay was from when the part
lefe T.I.'s facility in Massachusetts, went to
Highlight Induaﬁries in Texas and then ended up back
up in Michigan?

A, Ho.
Q. Today -- 8S8itting here today, do vou have

any information you rcan give the jury on whak that

|turn-arsund btime waa?

‘h. No, I cannot.

Q.  oOkay. Now, who at the plant in wixom
actually innta;lad tEiB agssnblad group of
cnmﬁanantﬂlinto the vehicle?

A. 1 don't know who they are.

Q. Ckay. wﬁuld that have baen peapls on the
line or 1is that mscmething that you uimplf have no

idea abaut?

AlA COORT REFORTERS 713 466-%1235
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) A, That would most likely be somebody on the
production line.
Q. In thie investigation that you headed, did
You go to Wixom and locok at the facility to
determina ﬁhere this actual event would've occurred?
A. No, we did nekt.

Q. Is the Wixom plant reconflgured so that

ict'as making other vehiclaa or it still makes

Liﬁéqlna?
A, It's recontigured from what it was then.
. Okay. The - The preassembled group of

components, Including one of which is manufactured
by Texas Instruments, la now inatalled in a Ford
vehicle by a Ford worker; is that right?

A, That'u.cnrrect.

o. Okay. How, I aasked a guestion about

pulling a vacuum in Australia and you said you don't

know anything about thnt'ane_ﬁar or the other. But

explain to tha jury what pulling a vacuum means in
connsction wicth thie brake preagure switeh and how
it'e used in the '52, 'S91 Linceln.

A. Not basing an expert on the -- brake -- the
brake design aystem, I can't tell you what -- what
really goes on thexe, Whar I -- I do know ia that

the vacuum that i1a used at tha Wixcm assembly plant

AAR COURT REPQRTERE 713 456-9325
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ia the same vacuum from 1%%1 through 13997.

Q. Let's talk a little bit about it. I know
can't -- Well, let me -- let me back up. Did you
investigate how the vacuum was pullad on the part
during the"sl, '82 tims fraﬁa that yocu claim
resulted in the producticon of vehicles that had to
be recalled?

A. We agked if there was any information as
to uhatrche vacuum was for that time period,.

Q. A#d what did you learn?

A Wa learned tﬁat there was a vacuum drawn
on the braking ayatem,.

a. Were there recorde at Ford kept about how
the vacuum was pulled on thoye parts when they were
iﬁht&lled inte the vehiglea?
| A. There was a procedure that -- that was
identified.

g. -ﬁut did you have data that allowad you Lo
gb back and examine that, is what I}m asking?

a. I don't balieve there is data.

. Is this discussion points again?

A. Yae.

Q. Qkay. Bo it would be fair to say that a=

head of the investigation, you're net able teo share

wlith us any real data about what happened when those

AAXA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-5%325
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parts wefa installed in Forgd vahicles vis-&-vis the
vacuum pull. Is that-a fair scatement, excapt that
it was the same procedure used for eight years?

A, That's correct.

Q. 6kay. Now, the same procedure yau usead
for eight years, let's talk akbout khat. Can you
explain that procedure to thea jury?

A, It would've been the same -- I mean, it'a
the same from ‘%1 through 'B87.

Q. Okay. But explain hew 1it's done. That's=s

what I'm trying to -- When you say the wvacuum was

puil:d. most pecople like me, they don't understand

what that means.

A. It's -- It's really something that -- that
wcﬁld be best described by a bkrake engineer.

Q. Would it be fair to say that you don't
have the information te give the Jury here today
about wﬁatraxnctly was dene or what you would need
t; de ko pull a vacuum te inmtall thie part in a
Ford vehicle in Wixom in '91 or '927

A. The vacuum that -- that wag usad for the
brake system was the same for '$1, '92 through '%27.

. Q. I understand that. ['m msking you a
different gquestion,

A. I'm trying teo understand what the question

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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s
Q.- What did tﬁey actually do? E=xplain it to
us. Why do you need a vacuum? Let's start ﬁhere.
A. The brake engineer weuld be begt ahle Lo

explain that.

. You're nott?
A. Righre.
Q- Okay. 8o the part is inatalled in a Ford

vehicle with a cellaction ef others components,
there are some technical things that need to be done

te install this switeh correctly in the vehicle,

corract? You've get to do it right. ¥ou'wve got do
install right vacuum. You'wve got to conneg¢t it.
You've got to put the connecter on. You've got to

check it out electronically. All those things have
te be done at the Ford factory, correct?
A. That'e correct.

2. ﬁk:y. Do you knai_haw thope thinge waere,
iﬁ fact, done at Wixom, the iBEl, 192, weye Lthere
documents around that allowed you to go back or were
thay all gona?

A. I helleve they were all gone. They
would've bean followed £rom '91 threoeugh "27.

Q. Okay. 8¢ in your investigaticn, am I

Jjeorrect that you were not able to collect aay real

ABRA . COURT REPCRTERS 7123 455-9%25
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data, for example, on how long it toock the pérts Eo
cycle from Massachusetts to Wixom, correct? You had
no real data on that? Am I right?

A That's correst.

Q. Yﬁu had ng real data on how the part was
actually assembled in Dallas, Texas to the
collection of components, correct?

A. That's correct.

. You had nc data on how the vacuum was

actually installed and how the part wasm connected at

the Ford factory, correact?

A. That's corract.

G. And you had no data on sxactly how the
elactrical side of the switch was connacted by
somebody at Ford at the Wixom factory?

A. Hot in how they did thac, correct.

Q. Qkay. Lat'as talk a little hlﬁ about the
electrical connector. That is a device that is £it
an top of the mwitch and it connects the electrical
component of the switch bto the speed control ayetem
designed by Ford?

A, That'es correct.

Q. Okay. Now, that connector im acmething
Ehat T.I. does not manufaéture?_ Am I right abouk

thatc?

AAR COURT REPORTEERES 713 466-%9325 )
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A. T.I. manufactures half of the connector
system, right.

Q. T.I. manufactures the switch as depiected
in Exhibit?

LY

MS. WEINER: 2.

0. -~ 2. Am I right?
a. That's right.
Q. All right. And there is something that

fits on thia part of the awitch at the top of

Exhibit 2 that T.I. dees nok manufactura?

A That's correct.
Q. New, who manufactures that?
A. I believe that was manufactured by United
Technologles.
- Q. Ckay. And at the time 1in 1951, 1992, was

nited Technolegieas the supplier of the electrical
connector thlt.fit on the Texas Instruments switch?

. 'I undersgtand that IInited Technologles
supplied that half{ of the connactor aystam.

Q. ¢an you tell us the distribution chain for
that product? Where did United Technolagles
manufaeturse it? |

A. No, 1 cannot .

@. Did you investigates that in your

inveatigation of the Town Car fires?

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9315
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A. No, we did not.
Q. Why not?
A. I nead Lo restate that. Okay. The =-- The

electrical connector in the wiring hagness was
discuased.‘ One of the engineers, Norm LaPeinte,
went and talked to that.

Q. Okay. I'm sure you discussad irt. I'm
agking you a different queation.

A. Well, he -~ he -- he did the investigation
intes the connactor.

Q. You have trend data that -- As I
understand it, there's some trend data that is
driving &some of this lnvestigation. Am I right

abour thatc?

© A That's r»ight.
Q. And I'm aakiﬁg you, did you go and then
who look -- Because you may in your -- in your white

paper that cne of the root causes, you think, is
this connector leak. That's in the white paper,
correct?

A, That was -- At the time we wrote that,
that's on of the things --

Q2. And it's never been changed?

a. And it's not bmsen changad.

g. Okay. Did vou go to the people who

AAA COURT REPORTRERS 7131 466-9325
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supplied the connector and ask them, where did you

manufacture these connectors, guys?

A. I believe Norm LaPointe would'wve done
that.

o. ﬁﬁ you know 1f he did, 1a my guestion?

A, I don't know that he d4did.

G. Did you -- Are you akle here today as the

rapregentative of Ford Motor Company to tell us that
Ford did iL?

A. I would have to refeaxr to Norm LaPoinkte
about that.

Q. Did you check to ses where the part went
after it was manufactured by United Tachnologics?
Did it go to a Tier 1 suppllier like cur part did or
did it g¢ diractly bto Wixom? Did you invastigate
that?

A. I would defer to Norm LaPointe for that,

Q. That's not something that you're able to
tell uz today?

a. fhnt's correct.

c. Did you Eell-ﬂnrm LaPointa, hey, go
investigate thig? D#d you taell him that?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And you don't khow what the resulca

were or if he d4id?

AbRA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-2325
95%7 Jones Road, Nao. 363, Houston, Texas T7065

ERg2-823-A 12341




140

11

12

13

14

15

1%

17

14

139.

20

21

22

23

24

25

1123

A. I den't recall at this point what the
regulta were.

Q. Ckay. Do you know whether a Tier 1
supplier is involved with the connector side?

A. i don't know that.

Q. Do you know where the conneckter was, in

fact, ingtalled on tha vahicle?

A. What do vou mean?

@¢. Was it done at Wixom?

A. I believe it was donae at Wixom, yes.

G. And were ynu'able to find the procedures

that were used by the Ford factory toc make sure that
both our awltch and thﬁ ¢PNNEecLor were properly
inatalled?
T Al I don't have those procadures.
Q. At the time,_were those -- I'm sura, at

the time there were written procedures for Ford

workers to follow &0 they weuld correckcly install

components on Ford vehicles, right?

a. I -- I would assume that, yes.

Q. Eecause Ford has an interest in making
nure-its components parts are correctly installed
bacause Ford is responsible for the eatire vehicle?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And you're here today's ag the

ARhfd COURT REPORTERS 713 4&6-9532F
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representative of the company. During the
inveatiéatinn. did you Ltry to find the written
procedures that Ford specified for installation of
the T.I. switch and the connector at Wixeoem? Did you
try to £ind those?

A. I believe we asked the guestiocon and we
asked gquesticons regarding tchat kind of 1information.
In general, the ansewer was that that information was

no Ianggr available.

o. Okay. Were these discussions or is this
data? -

A, That was discussion.

Q. Because 1f you look at the -- the trend

data you would agree with ma, would you nok,

Mr-. Porter, that there are a lot more fires in
Lincoln Town Cars than there are in Grand Marguis
and Crown Vice, corract?

A, The Grand Marqule and Crown Victoria
lathhowed fewer fires than thea Town Cara.

@.. I maan, ian't -- Apd we're all in
litigation. I mean, we're hare ktoday because
scmebody in Hiaaiqaippi has sued the company. What
'kind of car are we here today on?

A. 7 balieve wa're talking about a Lincoln

Town Car,.

ARAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3325
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Q. All right. Aand the wvast majority of the
claimg and lawsuits agalnst Ford Motor Company
involving this switch are Linceln Town Cara, are
they not, sir?y

A That's because the vast majority of these
pwitch were installiasd on Linceln Town Cars.

Q. Okay. But the vast majority of the claims
that are being brought are Lincoln Town Cars?

A. That would be corresponding to the -- the
numbers where the switches were installed,

g. How much switches were installed in
Lincolna and how many switches were installed in the
Crown Vicg, Grand Marquis. |

A. The Lincoln were -- all had the switch.
The Crown Vic, Grand Marguis, I don't know what the
number would be.

g. You don't know the number -- what the
number would be because those nuambers are not
available to Pord anymere or you simply don't Xnaow?

A. I den't -- I dontt know. 7 dan't think =0

these numbers are avallable te Ford.

Q. Let's take a look at Exhibit % and Page 7
of 25 -- '

A, I gave that back to you.

g. -- paragraph 6 and ldt's -- Do you see

AAA COURT EEPORTERS 713 466-9325
9597 Jones Road, No. 163, Houston, Texas 77065
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where I am, Paragraph &7

A. Yas.

o Estimated Productien Of Preoblem Statistics
iMagnitude Of Concern), did I read that right?

A. éas.

. Okay. Take a look at -- There's a culumn_
that saya: Potentially Affected Units. Do you see
that?

A. Yesn,

Q. ¢kay. And am I correckt that there were
actually more Crown Vics and Grand Marquis built
during this time period than there were Lincoaln town
Cara??

A, Yes,

Q. Okay. And the Lincoln Toewn Car., you have
123,310 number of units; the Crown Vic for the same
peried -- Well, it's not the same period. But for
the recall period it is 155,335; iz that right?

A, That's correct.

Q. And thare's Estimated Percentage Of
vehicles That Contain The Conditien and that's
unknown. Doas that m:#n the potentially defective
eithar connecter or switeh?

A. It would ba the petentially defective

switch.

ARA COURT REPORTERI 713 466-9325
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report, correct? |

A, At this point in time the copnnector was
not ruled out.

0. iud itk's unknown because youw don't know
which care during this time frame may or may not

exhibit a defgck?

A. We alwg don't know which cara have thae
switch.. .
a. Okay., And has -- have you done saome work

since this document, Exhibkit 3, to be able to share
with us the exact number of switches that were
inptalled in each wvehicle line?

A We do not know the number of defective --
potentially defective awitches that were installed
in the Crown Vie, Grand Marqguis.

Q. Dﬁ you know the -- ﬁht -- the number of
switches, period, that were installed in the Crown
vie and Grand Marquis line? I'm asking, have you
doane any additional wark so the unknown is now maybe
something that yau'?e.heen ihle ko dalcula;a?

A. ¥o. I'm =~ I -- I.can't calcu;ate that
fﬁr you Tright now.

Q. Let's go back to the factorxy floor.

There's going to be.an ingtallarion. Ford personnel

ARA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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are going the install. Did the trend data suggest

to you that there were problems with Ford vehicles
that were bullt during certain time pericds?

Aa. Exhibit -- What do you mean by that,
certain time periods?

Q. Well, the trend data that you sald you
looked st, that was data that tracked vehicle build
dates with car firesms, carrect?

a. That'slcnrre:t.

Q. Vahicle build datea?

A. Yeq, i

Q. And that means the date the car wasa builc
atc your fa:tnry?

a, Approximataly, yes.

) c. Okay. And you've told ua you den't have
any data on the time that it takes for a switch to
get to your facturyf

A, That's corract.

Q. So you're looking at: Is there a problem
with cafa that are kBuilt at Ford factn;ies during a

cartain time frame? That's what that trend data

really tells you --

A. Uging --
Q.- -- gcoarrect?
A. Using the Texas Instrument brake pressure

AAA COURT REPORTERS 711 466-92325
9597 Jones Road, No. 363, Houston, Texaa 77065
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awiteh,

Q. All right. &And that data that you relied
upoh 18 contained in Exhibit 5. Am I correct?

A. Thar'a ceorrect.

Q. Ia there any data that you relied upon

that is nor contained in Exhibilt &7

a. For the daclision of the recall?

Q. Yes, sir.

A No .

Q. Who at -- I apologize if [ asked you thils
before, )

A, Can I -- Can I meodify that?

Q. Rbsolutely.
A. ckay. &nd that ia, that other vehicles

were looked ar far trend data and there was no trend

available on othar -- sphowing up en other vehicles.
Q. Okay. Let's -- Let's talk --
A. And that ig not included in these

vahiclea.

Q. All right. Let's talk about that since
it's not in hera. When you &ay, other wvahicles were
locked at, lat's starta with the beginning. What
vehicles lines were rn looked at?

A. Well, we started with the Town Car, Crown

Vvie¢, Grand Marguis.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 7123 486-9325
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Q. Ckay.

A. We want on to the Mark VIII, che
Econcline, the F Ee;ies; ard we weant on through all
of the other Ford vehicles lines.

Q. You lcoked ar all Ford vehicles lines that
usgd thia switch and electrical connector or did you
look at all Ford wvehicle lines, pariod?

A. We locked at all Ford vehicle lines chat
used brake pressure switch from Texas Instrument
used for apeed control.

. Did you lﬁnk'at all other vehicle lines
that uaed connectors that were manufactured by
United Tachnologiea?

A. Those would've been included with that,
) Q. Qkay. And the lines that you locked at

were in additien te the onse you menticnagd, were the

Mark VIII, ie that -- ar Mark IV?
A. It was the Mark VIII.
Q. Okay. Explain why you looked at that

vehicle ljine.

A. That *ehicle line alaa usad a brake
presgure switch that was similar to this one.

. Okay.

A, And we wanted to sea if there was a trend

with the Mark VII and theare wag not.

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-932S
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Q. When did the switch first get installed in

a Mark VIII, if you know?

A. There's a chart socmeplace, I think that
was 1993.
Q. S0 the Mark VII was a vehicls line that

evantually recaived the brake pregsure awiteh, but

it wasn't in the '31, '92 time frame?
A. Corract.
Q. Whare -- The Econocline, whean dié that --

why didé you look at that wvehicle?
A. Again, it had a brake pressure switch that

was used in the -- it was uged by -- or bullt by

|Texas Instrument used in the speed contzol circuit.

Q. Thak's the Eccnoline line Ford van?
. A. Yea.
. It's a van; isn't that what that 1a?
A. That's right.
Q. Okay. And that --_daqs that vehicle share

|che same typa of electronic architecture?

A. How do you nsan?
Q. I mean, haa it geot the sams setup,
feEdinﬁ -- the thinge you discusased with Mr. Jolly,

the amount of power going to the gwitch and 18 it
centinuousaly powerad? I mean --

A. It's ;imilar.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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. Q. Well, how -- I mean, you say it's similar.
I mean --

A, I --

2. Can you tall us whab --

A, £f we gob out the schematic we might find

that the fuse is -+ 18 a litcle different, that is,

it might hawve a 20 amp fuse instead of a 15 amp

JEuse. We --

0. How about tha Mark IV, is that the same
elaectrical design?

A. Yeg.

Q. And then you also manticned that you
looked at the F Series?

A. Yes.

Q. Dkay. And those vehlecles are -- alao use
Texas Instruments brake prassure awitchem?

A.  Yes. |

Q. 'And who actually did the investigation?

Who's the person that went and lockad at those other

lines and -- te see if there were any trend data?
A, That would've bean Tom ﬁastur:' group.
Q. Tom Masters' group. And -- And how would

he do that; I mean, short of plicking up the phone
and calling up all your currant ownera? I me&n;

how -- how do you do that? How do you figure ocut if

AAA COURT REPORTERS 733 466-9325
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|there are problems that are going on with these

vehicleg?

A. That would be somethling that he'd ke able
to elucidakte better for you.

Q. hre you able to share that wirh us today
as the representative of Ford on how he actually --

¢r his group actually did that?

A, I couldn't tell you exactly how that
happaned,
o. Dkay. Anything else that you think may

have happenad that ral&tas ta trend data that'a not

contazined in Exhibit 5 =thar than what we'wve talked

about?
Aa. &t thils peint I can't think ﬂf anything.
i a- Are you a atatlieticlan, Mr. Fnrteré
A N, I'm not.
Q. What degrees do you hold?
A. I have a Bachasler of Arts in Mathematics

and Phyaics, Bachelor of Beiance in Electrical
Engineering and a Master of Sclence in Electrical
Engineering.

@. - And are yﬁg a licensaed engineer in any
p;rti&ular atate?

A Yen.ﬁ

Q. What atate?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 4&€6-9325
9597 Jones Reoad, No. 363, Houeston, Texas 77065

§




10

11

12

13

14

15

1§

17

18

15

20
21
22
23
24

25

123

A. Colorada,

. ¥ou're not Licensed in Michigan?
A No. |

Q. Did you have on your team any

scacistical -- any statisticians, people with

gtatistical backgrounds?

A We did not have at the time of the
investigation. We did not have statisticians, per
as.

2. And I've seen a name on some of the

dacuments, a J. Kafadi.

A, That's our --
Q. Is that somebsdy that worked for Ford?
A. Yes.
2. Okay. BAnd d¢id he work with Mr. Masters'
group?
A Yeaq.
Q. Do you know 1f he was the person that was

reesponsible for collecting the sv-called trend data?

Aa. Ha may have-been involved with some of
thac.

Q. That's not an area that you have perscnal
knowledge of, am I corresct?

A. I don't know exactly what he did.

Q. ¥ou don't know exactly how it was done and

AAA COURT REPORTERE 7123 4&646-9325
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lwhat parameters Chose people used to pull whatever

data they brought intoc that Exhibit 57

A. Well, the parameters -- the parameters
that théy used, I believe -- Take a8 laook -- I
believe théy're -- they're basically specified on
thosa charts.

Q. And by parameters, I mean what fires they
ruled in and what fires they ruled cut and how they
made calla when something was ligted; or whether
this was a f£irs that they wanted to inc;ude in a
data base or exclude. ‘That's what I'm asking.

A, If you wanted to look at a specific
instance, you'd have to gpeak with them.

Q. Right. What I'm trying te establiah here
for the Jury is that you den't -- you're not here
able te tell us how that waa done, correct?

A. Wall, not specifically, no.

Q. hkay. Lef'a go back to tha factory floor.
The part 1s installed in a vehigla, ther='s same
things that need to ke done to make gure that part's
installed nurfectly. And.after those parts are
inatalled correctly, does Ford do testing to make
sure that the vehicles that they have are, 1n fact,
testeﬁ, all tﬁe :aﬁpnnents are teatgd to make sure

they function properly?

AAA COURT REFORTERS 713 4§56-532E
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B A. I can't tell you specifically what goe2s on
at the Ford plant. ﬁut Ford generally does do tests
to validate that it's been assembled correctly.

Q. Did you, 1in your investigation, go to the
Wixom plané pecple or Ford's archives or whatever =)
try to find out, wall, hey, what testiﬁg was done
during cthe Elme frame that the trend data supports
to satisfy me, Ford's investigator, that thare were
testes being done on these vehicles to make sure the
componentes operatad properly? Did you do that?

a. Wwe asked the people who were cn the Leam
Exrom the V.0 -- That wpuld've been Joe Neme -- 1f
there was any information that they had.

Wag is D.C.?
v.C.

Ch, I'm gorry. What doee that stand for?

- "I = T I«

§tands for Vehicle Center. That's thae
engineering group.

| Q. So tha anawer to mf gquegtion 1s: You did
not do that; you did not go to Wixom or pick up the

phone and talk to anvbody at Wixom; you went to the

Vehicle --

A. Vehicle Centar.

Q. -- Center and asked if thoae racords
existed?

AMX COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3335
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A. Yas.
. All right. And what were yocu told?
A. That that information is no longer

available.

Q. So again, discusaion; neot data?

A, That's correct.
Q. All righe. Now, the recall notice that

wags esventually issued buy Ford in May of 199%% called

for two steps. One was an interimn step and one wasa
a final satep. Am I correct about that?

A. I believa that'a correct,

Q. Okay. And were you inveolved in -- in

puggesting what the interim atep was and what the
final step wam? Was that part of your job?

A. I think there was -- And agaln, I reviewad
what that deocuments WwWaE.

Q. Wase that decision made by somebody higher
than you, I gueps, is what I'm tyying to get at?
I'm trying to find out who the right perscn is teo
talk about that.

A, I guegs I1'm hot axactly sure what the
guestion is yat.

2. There are twe steps suggesbted. One's
interim and cne's Iong-term.

A That'sa correctk.

ARAA COURT REPCORTERS 711 466-9325
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. . 1 - Q. Who came up with those two steps? That's
. 2 all I'm asking.
3 A. It'a -- The guestion that we were trying
4 to address was: What do we do for qgustomers who
5 come in taéay --
" 6 @. Uh-huh.
7 A. -- that want a Eix before T.I. would be

) able to supply parts for the long-tezm fix.

2 D.: And you aaked T.I. how long i1t would tahe
- . 10 them to get newly manufactured parts tc you. And
: 11 what waa their respnns;?
f 12 A. They came up with a timing plan of when
. 13 thay would be able to deliver thess.
, 14 Q. All right. And did you understand that
15 thé parts were going to be manufactured in

16 Attlebors, Magse?
17 A. Yes,.
18 Q. And did ydu have any complainta with the

15 timing schedule that Texas Instruments gave you Lo

20 gake the replacemant parts into girculatinn?

21 A. -It wapsn't faat encugh, but it wasn't --

22 Q. Haéhing wouldive been fast enough,.right?
) 23 A. If thay had been able te deliver them that

24 day, that would've been faat enough.

. . 26 G. 178,000 -- 278,000 awitchas deliverad that

o

g
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_day, that would've been goed, right.

A. That would ‘be good.
0. Okay. ©Back to my gqueastion: There's an
interim fix and a long-term fix. Do you recall what

the interi& fix was for this problem?

A. I baliave the interim fix wasg
disconnecting the connector from the speed control
awitch.

L. All right. And do you know why that was
recommended as the intearim £ix?

A, Becaugse that would eliminate the
electrical power to the syaten.

o. How would old that benefit a consumer, by
héving that electrical power disconnected from the

awitch oxr the connactor?

A. I doa't know how that would benefit a
|consumer.
Q. Why did you -- It was a bad guestion. I

apologizes. th wan that desmed an acceptable
interim rspair?r Because it eliminated the chance of
;ffire, carrect, My, Porter?

A; Becauge-it eliminated tha chance.nf a fire
in a defective switch.

Q. By taking the -- By disconnecting it, the

interim sclution was, 1f we take the power away E£rom

AMR COURT REPORTERS 7123 484-92323
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_this awitch, we eliminate the chance there could be

a thermal avent --

A. If it was --
Q. -- that was the thinking?
A. If it was a defective ewitch, removing the

power would eliminate that, yes.

G. And the leong-term repalr that was
suggested was to change the awitch with a brand new
Texas Instruments awitch and change the connector?

A, That'a correct.

Q. And that's the connector that was
manufactured by United Tecknologies, eorract?

A. That'as correct. That was declded Eo go
with that in the event that there had besen scme
tharmal activity and damage had occurred to the
éunnectnt, rhat it weould not be invelved either,

Q. Ia it your testimeony that priocr to that
Foint you had nokt sean any awltchea that had water
that had come through tha connector and causgead
Prﬂbllml?“ I thought the Memphis switch had evidence
of water in iE. Have I got that wrong?

aA. I don't -~ I believe the Memphis switch
had primarily brake fluid in it.

Q. Yeab. But it also had water in it, didn't

ity
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A. It had -- S8ince it was put oukb with a Fire
sxtinguisher, it hadla lot of other material with it
also.

Q. And there waa a chemical analysis actually
done of whét fluidas were in that awitch, right?

A. Yes,

Q. And that chemical analyeis showed that
thare was more than just brake f£luid in that switcﬁ;
didn't it?

.A. There was wmore thin jusgt brake fluid,
that'a correct. .

MR, MAYER: This 1s a goed stopping
spot. Why don't we take a break fox lunch.
{Lunch recesas taken.)

@.. Mr. Porter, if you look at Exhibit 5, I do
have a question I want to talk ko you about, this
issue of the number of vehicles equipped with the
apeed control. As I understand 1t, on Page 7 cf a0,
and Item 6, Estimated P:aducﬁian And Problem
Stntihtic# {Magnitude of Concern), 1t s=ays:
Potentially Affacted Units, A-f-f-e-c-t-e-d. thﬁ
doea that mean?

A. That means thase wvehicles that were.
potentially having brake pressure switchaa that

might have leaky diaphragms.

AAARA CQURT REPORTERS 713 466-5;25
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Q. And are these all the Town Cars that were
produced during this time period?

A. That numkbexr weould colncide with all the

| Town Cars from that tlme perieod.

g ind the Crown Vic, Grand Marguis number is

glven asg 155,333 affected vehicles. Am I right?

A. I belleva it'e 155,335.
a. Ch, I'm sorry. I misspoke. You're
correct. Those -- When 1t says: FPotentially

Affected units, theoea afe vehicles that were

egquipped with speed conktrol?

A. That would be vehiclas, y=a, with speed
control.
Q. All right. $So when you sald to me that

thére were more Town Carse with speed contrels than
Crown Vica, Grand Marguis, thab's not krue? Thia
document indicates that thezre are more {rown Vic,
Grﬁnd uarqﬁil thnn_ann Cars in the pezrlod that were
iﬁenfified on thia document?

A, What I was Baying at that time was that_
the Town;-- there ware-mufe Town Cars with the type
of brake pressurs switch that appeared to have leaky
diaéhragm: than on the Croawn Vig, Grand Marquias
because there were two tfpes of switches fhat were

usad on the Crown Vic, Grand Margquie.

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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2. Okay. And what ls the type of switch Ehat
you believe is more likely to have a leak in che
Kapton?

A. The switch that was used on the Town Car,
which I beiieve ie referred to as the noisy awitch.

g. And the switch for the Crown Vic and Grand
Marquis was a different awitch?

A, TheICrawn Vic, Grand Marquis usaed both the
noisy switch and another awitch known as the guilet
switch,

Q. Do yvou know £he differences betrtwesn the
twe awitches?

A. They were deeign differencas that T.I. hzd

made,

Q. Row, lek's -- Well, are there any defects,

according t¢ Ford, in the Crown Viec, Grand Marguia

ewitohms?
A. ﬁf the ewitches that were similar te the
Town Car -- Of the Bwltches that were the Bame as

ﬁhe Town Car, thgy could potentially show water or
brake fluid leakage through the diaphragm also.

| Q. Ckay. Aﬁdll think there's pomething with
that part number. My recollection there is
something., -Oh, I know what it is. It's the -- One

of your Hi-Stat tegte, I think it is Teat Ne. -- I

AAR CQURT REPFORTERS 713 466-92325
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mean, Exhibit Ne. 4. Didn't you tell me that's kthe

two different numbers; one's a -- the first one 15 a
Grand Marquis numher,lrihC-SFQZJ-Ah. that'a Grand
Marguls and Crown Vig¢; and the other one,
F2VC-9F924-AB is the Town Car?

A, What I aaid was. that I wasn't sure which
was which., But that could ke correct.

Q. and sa it's Ford'a position that the --
the -- ﬂell, let me -- lat me ask it another way.
Why do you belisve there are many mcre car fires
appearing in the Lincoln Town Car?

A, There -- There are multiple reasons. One
of those reasonse is that the Crown Vie, Grand

Marquis nsed the gquiek awitch alse. There are --

The twe vehiclee are, in fact, different. The Town

¢ar weighe more than the Crown Vic, Grand Marguis.
And therefore, the brake pressures that would be
experienced in a Town Car might be slightly more.
fhnra -- |

Q. Has Feord dons saome teating to evaluate the
brake preu-ur-s.in the Town Car versus tha Grand
Marguls or the Crnwnlvic?

A. Ry I maiad, thowse were differences between
the vakicles. Exactly, you know, hnw that weould

manifest itaelf, no, we havan't done that.
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Q. You have not looked at the brake pressures
in the reapective_vehiclas?

A. No, we haven't, Well, I take that back.
We did loeok a2t the brake pressures on the Town Car
and to lnci ar what levels those would -- would be
at and they were well withln the specification
limite that we had.

Q. Did you compare that information with what
the brage Presguree were on the Crown ¥Vic or the
Grand Marquis?

a. We don't -- éidn't ¢ompara that ﬁith the
Crown Vic, Grand Marquia. It's only that the Crown
Vic, Grand Marguis is a lightar wehicle.

g. And it'a yeur supposition that the brake

EY

pressures would be different because it's a lighter

vehicle?
A That would be one pogeible sxplanation.
0. . Has Ford done any taeating of any kind in

connection with the brake pressurea that would be
expariaenced in tha_rulpg:tiva vehielgﬁ.-dnmparing
them? Have you done any :esting of any kind at any
time to lobk at what the differences are in the
brake prespurssg --

A, I can't may --

Q. -- of thdse twe vehiclah?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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A. I can't gay that -- that there iz a
compare between thus; two wehicles; although it
would be similar for not only those vehicles, but
the following years alsc.

Q. Back to my guestion: Have you decne any

testing that looks at the brake pressures - -.

A, That compares --
Q. -- experienced in these two vehicle linas?
A, That compares the Town Car tc the Crown

Vic, Grand Marguis, there's a whola lok of

engineering that's been going on at Ford. &And I
don't know of that teast. I don't know whether it
exists &r doeaa't exist.

Q. Okay. Let me try to direct it more ko the
in;EEEigation that you were involved in and thgt you
are invelved in. Have you asked anybody te go out
and examine‘what a ppssible-cause ﬁuuld be for the
fact that fhe Linecelns meam to have a much higher
iﬁcidénce'nf car fireg than Eha Grand Marguis or the
Crown Vice? Have you asked somebody to do that?

A, We did con -- We were concerned with why
the Town Cara had a greater fraquancy of -- of fires
than the Crown Vie, Grand Marquis. Duﬁ concluelon

wasd that the diffsrent awitchea that were uged in

the Crown Vie, Grand Marquis werxe a possible reason

Adj COURT REPORTERS 713 466=9325
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rfor that. And since it wouldn't change the

population of the reéall. it really didn't matter
what the comparlson was?

Q. Why wouldn't it change the population of
Lha recallé

A, Because thowe swibtches with the leaky
diaphragms could've gone into the same population in
boch wvehliclen.

Q. Bo that aays.that the faect that you have
different switch numbers and they're different parts
doegn't really gilve yn; any 1lndiecaticon of which one,
in Ford's opinion, is more likely to leak or nat?

A. The switches that we got back that are
aggociated with thermal evants tend toe be -- or tend
tu‘be the same switches that are used in the Town

Car.

Q. When -- When were there changes in the

Lype of switeh put in the Crewn Vie and the Grand

ﬁarquis?
A. 1t was during the 19%2 model year.
Q. Do you know when?
A. Not eaxactly.
2. Would it be corzect to may that the

inicial production stages, maybe January through

April, the Town Car and the Grand Marguie got the

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 455-9325
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1 Llsame gwitch?

2 F- The Crown Vig, Grand Marquis didn't get

3 any switch until after -- after the Town Car until

4 produstion atarted.

5 Q. Uh-huh. Well, tsll me & little bit about
& |what -- I've asked yvou, did you ask anyone to go out

7 and.da thia comparison and try to give you some

B answeres con why there were more firea in the Town

9 Car. Who did you ask to do that?
10 A, I asked Stave Reimers what -- what he
11 ﬁhnught. He worksa fnrwme.
112 a. Uh-huh. Anybody else?
13 A. That was a topic that was brought up io
14 the meetings. And I don't recall any apeclilc ideas
15 that were brought cut at that time.
16 Q. Okay. And to your knowledge, what test
17 did Mr. Reimsrs run to try to determine whether
16 ithare was Q difference in sither the component part
19 piaced in that wvehicle or scne oﬁhﬁr diffefence?
20 A. The gquestion teo Mr. Relmera was: What
21 could explain the difference hetwaén-tha Town Car

22 and the Crown Vic, Grand Margquis? And the answer is

23 that different switches are used in the Crown Vic,

24 Grand Marguis.

25 a. Okay. I'm trying to £ind out, is -- did

AAMA COURT REEFQRTERS 713 466-9325
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you, at Ford, do anything more than simply ask that
guastion and get an #nswer? Did someone actually go
and collect some data to try to substantiate that or
ie that just supposition?

A fhe information that we have, the data
that we have, is that the Crown Vie, Grand Marguis
uges the Town (ar switch and the guiet awitch.

Q. Ckay.

A, And that both of those were used. Further
clarification to that,_will make no differance as to
the pcpulation that got racalled for the Crown vic,
Grand Marguls.

Q. Okay. And did someons at Ford go and
e§amine the switches that you had resturned from the
field and look at what type of switchea they were?
Ware they quiet gwitches, were they -- Do you know?

A. We have had a company take a lagk at some
gf tha awitches that have bean returned.

Q. Well, is thers anything elea other than
your belief thar different types of switches were
put in the Grand Marquis or the Crown Vic that you
believe could explain why thara's-a much higher
|incidence of car fires in Lincolns versua Grand
Marquih and Crown Vica, when thare ware mere Crown

Vice and Grané Marguls with epeed contrxol?
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A. Az 1 sald before, thers ares-a varieky of
factore which I can't put my finger on all of them,

but certainly one of them isa the weight of the

vehicle.
Q. ﬁkny. Anything else?
A, That -- Neot that I can put my finger on.
Q. And when you gaid that you believe -- Or

Mr. Jolly, I think, asked you earlier in the
dgpasit;on whether fuu had a2 root cause and you gaid
¥&s, you tﬁought seaome of the Texas Instruments
switeches that you wure'aupplied_in the 91, '92 time
frame had a propenaity to leak and were, I think, as
you menticned, you felt were defectively
manufacrtured, can you -- Are you able to descrihba
the defact to ue, explain what the defact 1e?

_Af I cannst explain that information becaunse
that hasan't been provided to me by Texas Instrument.
What I do know in.that Texaz Instrument had a

proeblem with ﬁansuré or with mwitches aurviving. I

|also knew that they ware dissatisfied with the life

of that switch early con in the production process at
the tiwme that theas qwitchea ware builtf I know
that they made changes to their production process
that they did not inform ua of and that we were

unable to find out what was going on with this
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Hgwitch in that time frame due to Texas Instrument's
decision not to provide that to us,

Q. Okay. 1Is it -- It is my understanding
that Ford believes there ia a defect in the switches
that were Qanufacturhd in that time period, but you
a5 thai; represantative are not able to desecriba
what the defaet ie, how it manifesta itzelf?

A. I can -- It manlfeats itself by a leak in
the Xapton. Hew it happans, that would be something
that T.I. would havae fn produca.

Q. 'Take a look at Exhibit 4. Okay. That's

the teests that Hi-Scat ran in May of 2000. Do you

geg thak?
A. Yes.
Q. Ckay. And 4id you -- have you gone to

look at any of the parts that ware cycled to failure
by Hi-Stat?

A ﬁo. I have not,

Q. Hnﬁa you looked atlany parts that were
eycled to Eailuga by T.I, during this inveatigatcion?

A. No, I have not.

Q. Havﬁ you looked at any parts that were
returned from the field that were reported to have
failed, eithar leakage in the Kapton or water in the

cavity?
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A, ¥em, I have.
Q. . Where -- What switches did you leock and

when did yvou do that¥

A. Those switches were returned frowm the
field. They were dinassembled at a company namad
Exponent. And we -- we raeviewad those awitchee atg

Lhe same time T.I. wag there.

g. Okay. And did you -- That's the only time
you've heen Lo Exponant?

A, I've been to Exponent a couple of times.

Q. To look at a;itchca, ia thact the only time
you ware ;t Exponent?

A. I've prébably loocked switches other times
aleo, but that ig time bhat we were speclfically
lo;king at awitech failures.

Q. And other than the switchem that you
locked at at Exponant when Texas Inaﬁrumenta WaB
present dﬁring Ehe investigation, have vou looked at
;n} cther?

A. Well, thérs were other switches that --
that were cpensd up that came back from the Iield
during the investigatien. Texas Instrument was
presaﬁt-it moat of thoae also.

Q. Did you examine the Kaptcn youraelf in any

of the switches?
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A. I lecked through the microacope at the
Kapten also, yes. |

Q. Was that at Exponent.

A. I've looked at it at Exponsnt, alsc at
Central Lanratoriaa during tha investigation,

.  How many awltches did you locok at ac
Expeonent?

A. I can't tell you what that numbexr ig off
the-tnp_of mny heﬁd. It was mors than -- more than
five or ten.

Q. More than 207

A I don't know that I looked at all 20 of

those, but I think there's been 20 that they've

lockad at.
- Q. And how many did you look at at Central
Labs?
A. That was -- The snes that we've looked at

at Central Labs were part ufrthe report and 1
£hink == I think it was five or tem,

Q- Diay. And what about your examination led
you to kbelieve fhat there were some defects?

A. My examination, I could see in the Kapton
cracks. Examinaﬁinn by (Central Laboratery pecple
confirmed that thers were cracks threough the Kapton.

The -- Similarly, the Exponent, those -- those

AARAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-%325
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cracks have been confirmed.

a. Can you describe those cracks to us? What
did they loock like?

A, They tended -- tended Eo -- Thers were a
variety of forms. Thay tended to be -- lock like a

line in the Kapton.

Q. Okay. Can you be anymore aspecific than
that?

A. I can't rezlly. There was a variety of
different --

a. And -- I'm sérry. You told us befcore,

yau're-nut a chamist; that's not your filald?

A. That'e correct,

Q. And are you a apecialiet in Kapton?

A, No, I'm not.

Q. Would you defar to othars on that topic?

A Absclutely.

Q. iat's.tahu a look at Exhibitl4 and that
tast that Hi-Stat did. They cycled soma switches to
failura. And the switches, ace¢ording to Hi-Stat,

leaked at approximately 1,310,000 cyclas. Do you

gsee that? - _ |
A. That looks like it's about the £ifth one
down? |
Q. Wall, the first sne that saye: "Leak." I

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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guess, diaphragms’ cut, ia that it leaked. Look --
Look where there's the ones that talk about leaking.
aA. Yeah.

Q. Only the firet leaker from the group that
you had teéted or Ford bhad teated at Hi-Stat is
1,310,000 and 551,000 cycles?

A That's correct.

2. And what ia it about that Kapton that
differentiates it from Kapton Ehabt you've seen in

the field that you belleve is defective in some

fashion?
A. This Kapten would've bheen produced
in -- in all probabillity, 1353 or 1559,
0. What were the -- The real anawer 1s, vou

don't know becausa you haven't lcoked at thease
partag, right, Mr. Portear?

aA. I -~

MR. FEENEY: Walt a minute.

ﬁhjactinn, argumantative.

Q. Okay, Blr. You have not locked at any of
theae parts that failed at Hi-3tat aftei haing
cycled to ;- .

A. Na, I haven't. That's correct.

Q. S0 when I agked you what differentliates

w
that Kapton with cracks imn it from Rapton you saw in E
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the field; the anawer la: I don't know because J
didn't loock at ik, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. Ckay. Now, you'wve sesn Kapton with cracks
in it in tﬁe field, How do yoﬁ know that Kapton has
not simﬁly reached end of life?

A. - In the appliecaticn that it is, it may have
reachad its and pf life, but it has net managed to
reach the desilgn cycle for the park. The -- The
Kapton has falled at 50,000 miles -- 50- to
60,000 milaes in aoma vehicles, which Ls far short
of -- of the design life aither for the vehicle or
for the switch. |

Q. Well, you don't know exactly how many
¢cycles any of thope awitches saw that you locked at.

Am I correct on that?

A. I cannat tell you how many cycles the
switches saw. I can tell .you that it was less than
500,000.

Q. And what do ycu base that on?

A. The analysias that was done that shows the
S00,000 cycles of the switch at a hundred -- at 1450

psi and 135 C aquates to about twa-and-a-half times
the vehicle life,

Q. And what testing are you referring to?

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-932%
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A. I'm referring to data that was collected

cn the 1982 Crown Vie, Grand Marquis for brake

applications.
0. What year was that dats collectedr?
A. 1992, |
Q. And have you loocked at it in preparation

for thie depagition?

A, Mo, I ‘have not.
Q. When is the lask time that you saw it?
A, Ic wam some -- I -- It was a long tima.

It was saveral months ago.

a. Can you tell me f£rom a chemlcal analysis
whether thexs 18 any difference between Kapton that
has slmply worn out and Eapton that has a cut or a
créak.in it

A, I can't tell you thkat.

c. bid Ford do any testing to try to
differenciate when Kapton would fail from simple end
of lifs vergug whether there was gome ancmaly to the
Eaptun?

A. No, thay did not. You would depend on
Du Pont for th;t. |

Q. You're not aware of any auch teste and you
haven't saan any in thie case?

A, 1 haven't seen any in this case.

. ARA COURT REBPQRTERS 713 4£5-9225
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Q. Is there somebody at Ford that you
conaider mere knowladgeable than you on Kapton?

A. There are gome polymer experts at our
Central Laboratorlas.

Q. And did you ask any of those individuales
to asasist you in this investigation?

A. I didn't ask them directly., no.

. Do you know if any of them did =ssist in
the invegtigation?

A -1 balieve thaey did.

c. And who would that ba?

A I'm not surs what_their names area,

Q. Is the best that you c<an degcribe the
alleged defect in parts manufactured in 'Sl and '92,
that thosge parta, 1in your opinion, have a propensity
to crack in the Kapteca at some point before you
believa they should?

A. 'I'guess th:lhaat that I can describe the
defect is that fluid lsaks through thu-Kagtnﬁ inte
the electrical cumpoﬁintry;

Q. Dkay.. And the axact mechanism for how

that leak occcurs, you do not koow?

A. I do not know exactly when thak --
Q- Do you know if anyone at Ford knows that?
A I don't baliave they do, because that

AAA COURT REPORTERS 7131 465-%345
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hasn't heen provided te us by Taxas Instrumant.
Q. Dld any of the testing yeou did at Hi-Stat,

was -- was any of that information something that

|you asked for or received?

A. What information.

o. Did you agk Hi-Etat to run any teata to
determine the failure mechaniam that you believe
occur in these switches manufactursd in '59 and '92?

A, No, we did nat.

Q. What -- What dec you ceonclude from Exhibit
i1, if anything? )

A, That when Hi-S8tatk ran these tests, the
parta that they had procured met the -- the
deeign -- or the specificaﬁinn-

T Q. What do you conclude from the Ford test,
exhibit 1, the brake fluld teat?

A I conrclude that brake fluid in the switch
cavity can 1aad-to a fire. _

4. Oﬁe thing ydﬁ mantioned aarlier whan
Mr. Jally was agking you questions, you said that
Ford does have ; runt_uauan_nnd you helieve the root
caupe is failure thrquﬁ Kapton, allowing braka
fluid laak inte the switch. Do I.hﬁ#e thgt righeg?

A That's correct.

e. Okay. Then why is Ford still doing tests 5
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today with gwitches and brake fluid? If you have a

root cauge, why are you continuing Lo do tests,

Mr. Parter?

A, Bacauge T.I. econtilnues to deny that it's a
possibility.
Q. And what do you hope to learam from the

teste that you're doing?

A. I hepe to leara that -- that we can ashow
that there is -- in this particular c&ne, that brake
fluid doms cause a fire, T.I. had contended earlier

that they had only besn able to cause it with
saltwater and that brake fluld must not bhe a

problem. 5o this teat flies in the face of that.

Q. Well; doean't Exhibit 1 deo that?

A That's exactly what I meant.

Q. 86 why are you doing additional tests?
A Why are we deoing additional teatp?

Q. Yeah. I mean, hawlara they different than
Exhibit 1, I guesas, 1s what I'm asking you?

A, Tou mﬁan, that -= the Hi-Stat tast?

o. No. Hﬁ. Exhibit 1 is Ford's test that --
the purpcae 1s to show brake fluid without maltwater
contanination causas electrical ahort circuit of
test item, That's the purposs. And thg-concluqian

ig: Brake fluid contamination does cause electrical

AAA COURT REPORTERS 713 466-9325
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short cireuit and repults in Elre in the Texas

Instruments sawitch tést Ltem.
A. Due tg Te=xas Instrumentsa’™ continued

assmrtion that -- thatk it is nok that, we wanted to

be able tn.mndify the process sc that we could do it .

on a regular basmis.

Q. Well, has thia Exhibitc 1 ever bheean
provided to T.I., short of maybae twn.daya, to your
knowledge?

A. To my knowledge, it wasn't in existence
short of November 3rd.

Q. In the testing that's being done now,

explain how it'e being done.

A. Explain how the test is being done?
Q. Oh-huh. What ia somebody teating?
F what they are teating is, as I said, they

have puncturad tha Kapten to cause a fluid leak
through the Kapton. .They are providing brake fluid
at a low pressure to allow for brake fluld to enkter
into th; awiteh cavity and it ia -- has 12 volcis
applied to it with Ehe-capnhility of -- of up to 15
ampa of curreﬁt.

0. How many swlitches are being testad?

A. I beljeve there are alx or gevan on test.

. What are the date codes of the switchea?
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A. They ars all 1999 date codes.

c. and where are the tezts being done?

A Thay are being done at Building 5;

Q.- That's right. I asked you that. Okay.

Why did Ford ask Hi-Stat to run teata at
temperatures that you were 1n excess of the
apecification, if you know?

A. I believe that wae actually an errer on
Hi -Stat's parc,.

Q. Do you know what instructions were given
te Hi-Stat? a

A. I believe that wa weare -- we asked thea to
run the eaginearing apeclification test.

Q. And who dealt with Hi-Stat? Was that

Mr+ Eelmers?

A. That was primarily Mr. Reimers.
Q. Do you know where these teste were done?
A. Not for sure. Thay wers -- I believe they

ware at a Hi-Stat facility.
Q. Has Ford asked for microscopic analyals of
the Kapton diaphragme in any of the awitches that

were cycled to failure in Exhibkbit 47

Aa. No, we have not.
Q. Do you know why not?
A. We didn't think it was necessary.

AAR COURT REPORTERS 713 466-3325
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Q. Why noc?
A. They leaked;
a. Well, surely you're not contending thac

any switch that leaks i8 defectiva?

A Ne, I'm not. But if.thay leak priocr ko
500,000 cycles, they do -- they are.
. Well, was it -- wasgs it of interest to

anybody at Ford to examine the Kapton diaphragm in
the awit;hen that ¢ycled to failure at 1,300,000, to
compare these with switcheas that you baliesve may
have cycled shorter than 500,000 ¢n the field return

vehiclas (sic.}?

A. No.
G- Why not?
T A, Because it -- again, falling at 1,300,000

passen the mpecification and passes the lifé_
expectancy for the vehicle.

qQ. Am I correct that Ford hae done no
analysis to examine the Eapton tnat failed through
cycling to failure at -- in.axcuas ef 500,008 cycles
with thosm that Ford contends cyclad ta fallure
prier to 500,000, to your knowledga?

A. To my knowledge, that would be correct.

Q. Do you know whabt the firsf Texas

Instzrumenta brake pressure switch was that was

AARA COURT REFPORTERE 711 448-9335
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provided to Fgrd?

A, I'm not sure what you mean by that.

2. In your investigation when you began to
leok into the speed contrel deactivation switch, 414
vou lock to see when the first_speed control
deactivation switch -- or brake pressure switch was
provided by Texas Instruments to Ford, what vehicle

it went into?

A. Tha first swltches that ware -- came to
Ford were -- went intc the 1992 Town Car.
Q. Ware you aware that Texas Inetruments

provided brake presaure switches te Ford fer use
from the 1987 T-bird?

A. Not for the use in gpead control
deactivation.

a. But they were brake pressure awitches,

wers Lthay not?

A. ‘They -- They nﬁy have kbeen. brake presaurs
sewlicches.
Q. I'm irying ko f£find gﬁt. did you, as part

of ynﬁr investigation lesok intoe that?

A: Actually, that was a plece of information
that I den't recall being pruv;ded to u4a.

Q. Qkay. Dild you look at Ford to sse when

the first brake pressure switch Texas Instrumnenta
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|supplied wag received by Ford and how it was

supplied?

A, You mean, the one Fhat -- on the
Thunderbird?

Q. Yes.

A, Subsegquently we- have.

a. Did you look at the.vehiala dagign and how

that switch was used in the 1987 Thunderbirzrd?

A. Wa've -- Wa've looked &k that cursorlily,
Yes. |

Q. Can you explﬁin to us how the system used
Texag Instruments' brake pressure awltch in that
vehicle?

A. That awitch was used as an inpui into the
suspangion contrel moedule.

Q. And how was the sys -- how was the switch
activated and how was it used as an input?' |

A ‘It was Qctivatﬁd based on brake préaaura.
I believe, internal toc the switch thérs was a
differant dezaign than what.waa.on the Town Car. The
inpute into & -- into a contrcl module as a -- as a
contrel peoilnk.

Q. Did you ~-IIn }our inveatigation, &id you
tcock and sse what the similarities ware between that

1987 '87 T-bird switch anﬁ the switch that was being
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.provided for the Lincoln Town Car?

A. We -- We triad to do that. The original
informaticon from T.I. was that thay were essentially
the same switch. Upon doing X-ray analysis of those
switches, we found that the awitch mechaniam inside

wasa actually quite different.

.Q. How was 1t different?
A. They -- It had an 38-epring type maschaniam
for -- for contact versus the spring arm that's in

tha Town Car.

2. . QCkay. Were thers any other dilfferences
that you recall?.

a. Well, that =-- that, in my mind, mades it a
different switch.
T oa. And did you lock at what tha field histery
had been for warranty iltems in this 1387 T-bird
switch?

A, ﬂu, we did not. We didn't -- We were not

aware of that switch at the tima.

Q. And have you looked since then?
A. No, I havan't.
. 'Da you know whether the 1987 T-bird brake

preassura switch received congtant power?
A. I don't believe that it did.

Q. Do you know whether it was enaergized at
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any polnt in time with more than a hundred

milliampe?
A. I den't believe that it was -- thak it was
energized with current ever. They're energized

based on fiuid pressure, nat :urrent:

Q. And in your investigatien -- By the way,
when did you jein the investigation team that was
leoking inteo the possible cause of uander hood fires
in the '%2, '%3 Lincoln Town Cara?

¥4 November of 1598.

Q. And were yau‘ane of the initial team
members?

4.  Yes,.

0. Were there people who were“wnrking on the

project bafore you got involvaed?

A, I wasn't aware of any 9f these.

Q. And when you gt inveolved, did you ask to
sas what tﬁe warranty data was for thé switeh that
wiu beaing provided by Taxas Instruments for this
applicntinn.'thq 91, '%2 Lincoln Town Car switch?

A. Yeg, I did.

Q. hnd1what did the warranty data indicate?

A I -- | |

Q. Firat of all, lat's -- What 1ls the

warranty data? Explain that to the jury.
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